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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview: Good Times Restaurants Inc., a Nevada corporatioe { Company " ),was organized in 19¢
Through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Good TimesvBrThru Inc., a Colorado corporation ( “ Drive Th), we
are engaged in the business of developing, owrdpgrating and franchising hamburger-oriented difiveugt
restaurants under the name Good Times Burgers &Rr@ustard. Most of our Good Times restauramtsomate:
in the frontrange communities of Colorado but we also havechimed restaurants in Wyoming. Over the
three years we have experienced significant growibur same store sales in our Good Times BurgeFra&el
Custard restaurants which has led to significamréawement in our operating margins and the prafitgtof the
Company.

In fiscal 2013, we entered into a series of agressneith Bad Daddy 5 International, LLC, a North Caroli
limited liability company ( “ BDI " ), and Bad Dagd s Franchise Development, LLC, a North Carolina it
liability company ( “ BDFD " ), to acquire the exdive development rights for Bad Daddys 'Burger Be
restaurants in Colorado, additional restaurant ldpweent rights for Arizona and Kansas through oholly ownec
subsidiary BD of Colorado LLC ( “ BD of Colo ” ),nd a 48% voting ownership interest in the Bad Daddy
Burger Bar franchisor entity, BDFD. During fis@014, we exchanged the development rights for Adzior the
development rights for Oklahoma.

BD of Colo is engaged in the business of develgpimgning and operating full service hamburgeentec
restaurants under the name Bad Daddy Burger Bar. The Company manages BDFD under a geamen
agreement and BDFD is engaged in the businessanttiising Bad Daddy $ Burger Bar restaurants in cer
targeted markets across the country. We do ncidiiolate the operations of BDFD in our financiatements ar
account for our 48% ownership interest under théteenethod of accounting.

During fiscal 2014 BD of Colo opened two Bad Daddyrestaurants in the Denver metropolitan area ahitdhis
expected to open in January 2015. Subsequentstal fiyear end, Drive Thru opened one new Good 1
restaurant on November 20, 2014 and closed onutehase of land for development of an additionab@&dime:
restaurant expected to open in the Spring of 2015.

During fiscal 2014 and subsequent to fiscal yead, eme have also significantly increased the equoitythe
Company through the exercise of Series A, SeriaadBUnderwriter Warrants.

The terms “ Good Times ", “we ", “ us " and “oiwhere used herein refer to the operations of DFiwei, BC
of Colo and the Company.

Financial & Brand Highlights

« We have had seventeen consecutive quarters of staneesales growth.

« We had a 14.6% increase in same store sales fdistiad year ended September 30, 2014fiécal 201
") in addition to the increase in same store stefiscal 2013 of 12%.

« We ended fiscal 2014 with $9.9 million in cash witinimal long term debt, and subsequent to thel
year end we had additional warrant exercise practdet yielded $3.2 million in proceeds.

« Our net revenues for fiscal 2014 increased by QDO (+22.5%) to $28,037,000 from $22,892,0C
fiscal year 2013, primarily due to increased Godhés same store sales, and the opening of twe
Daddy ' s locations.

e Our loss from operations was $219,000 in fisca2€dmpared to $392,000 in fiscal 2013. Fiscal 2014
included $570,000 of increased new store openists@s compared to fiscal 2013 as well as thainiti
operating losses from our first Bad Daddy ' s neistat in Colorado.

o Our net loss was $370,000 for fiscal 2014 compsrekb44,000 for fiscal 2013.

« During fiscal 2012, we began a reimaging and reriogi@rogram for our older restaurants that corga
in fiscal 2014 and that we plan to continue indis2015. In fiscal 2014 we spent approximatel§GB0(
on recurring and remodeling capital expenditured ae plan to spend approximately $1,700,00!
recurring and remodeling capital expendituressodi 2015.

« We believe Good Times is the only quick servicaawsnt concept in Colorado offering all naturagf
and chicken with no hormones, no steroids, no Eniils and humanely raised, vegetarian fed ani
with no animal byproducts in the feed in all offi@mburger and chicken menu items.

o We continued our television campaign in fiscal 2Qhdt began in March of 2013 with four disti
product



windows, communicating Good Timesdre brand attributes of fresh, all natural, haradted products wit
taste profiles available only at Good Times, whi@ds contributed to our continued same store
increases through fiscal 2014.

« We opened a new Good Times restaurant on Noventhe2(®4 with new interior design finishes
décor that we believe continues to help set GomdeSiapart from mainstream hamburger quick se
restaurants, utilizing finishes and design elemerdee commonly seen in fast casual restaurant& pMf
to build additional Good Times Burgers & Frozen fau$ companywned restaurants in Colora
utilizing our 2,200 square foot, 48 seat diningmodesign, our 2,400 square foot, 70 seat diningn
design as well as converting buildings from otlestaurant concepts.

« Our second Bad Daddys restaurant in Colorado opened on July 28, 20#4cantinues to produce 1
highest average weekly sales of all Bad Daddyéstaurants in the system. Our third Bad Daddyir
Colorado is expected to open in January 2015 anglareto build additional Bad Daddys’ Burger Be
restaurants in Colorado and other states.

Recent Developments

During fiscal 2014, our liquidity and equity sigicéintly increased from the exercise of approxinya8% of th
Series B warrants and approximately 50% of theeSekiwarrants. Subsequent to the fiscal year endrmounce
that a total of 2,450,100 Series A Warrants, remrgsg 97% of the outstanding Series A Warrants10@ of th
154,000 Underwriter Warrants, were exercised byhbielers. Total gross proceeds from all warraneraset
were approximately $10,100,000.

In October 2014 the Company mailed a notice ofmeaton to all holders of the Compang ‘A Warrants. Each
Warrant was exercisable for one share of commakstv$2.75 per share until 5:00 p.m. Colorado Tand-riday
November 14, 2014. Holders of the A Warrants ardonger entitled to exercise their warrants fomowon stoc
and have no rights, except to receive the redemtiice of $.01 per A Warrant, upon surrender eirtiSeries
Warrants. No other warrants remain outstanding.

As reported on form &, on July 30, 2014 Drive Thru entered into a Depehent Line Loan and Secul
Agreement with United Capital Business Lending l(e¢hder " ), pursuant to which Lender agreed to loan C
Thru up to $2,100,000 (the “ Loan " 3gnd entered into a Collateral Assignment of FrasehAgreement
Management Agreement and Partnership Interests kétider. As of September 30, 2014, Drive Thru
borrowed approximately $196,000 under the Loan Agrent. In addition, on July 30, 2014, the Compamigre:
into a Guaranty Agreement (the “ Guaranty Agreenignuith Lender, pursuant to which the Company guaex
the repayment of the Loan. The Loan Agreementla@shl Assignment, Notes (as defined below) andr@ut)
Agreement are referred to herein as the “ Loan bus. ”

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, Drive Thaymse up to $750,000 of the Loan to purchase &t BbBalt
System and up to $1,350,000 of the Loan for theeldgwment of three new Good Times restaurants.veDFhrt
may request disbursements under the Loan Agreefoemevelopment costs of Good Times restaurant®r
before July 1, 2015. In connection with each disement under the Loan Agreement, Drive Thru shedcute
Promissory Note (the “ Notes "in) the full amount of each disbursement requeste Notes incur interest at a 1
of 6.69% per annum, are repayable in monthly imtaits of principal and interest over 84 monthgj eantait
other customary terms and conditions. The Notessabject to certain prepayment fees ranging betiée ani
3% of the unpaid balance at such time if Drive Thepays a Note in certain circumstances prior  tthirty
seventh monthly installment under such Note.

The Loan Agreement and Notes contain customaryeseptations, warranties and affirmative and neg
covenants, including without limitation, covenatdsmaintain certain insurance coverage and to @aira certai
debt service coverage ratio, leverage ratio, amckgatio.

After the occurrence and during the continuatiommfvent of default, interest on the Notes willrae at a rate
11.69% per annum and Lender may declare the urngpaidipal balance of the Notes, together with aedrbu
unpaid interest, immediately due and payable. Aenewf default under the Loan Documents includes,iv no
limited to, any of the following: failure to pay ipcipal or interest when due, breach of any repregion o
warranty in the Loan Documents, commencement afotliion or liquidation proceedings by the Compam
Drive Thru, insolvency or bankruptcy of the CompamyDrive Thru, or failure of the Company or Dri¥éru tc
comply with any material term of the Loan Documents



The Loan Agreement and Notes are secured by suiaditaall of Drive Thru 's assets, including, but not limitec
its interest in Fast Restaurants Bevelopment Limited Partnership and all distribn§cand proceeds relating
such partnership interest. Fast RestaurantD&elopment Limited Partnership is a partnershipwimich the
Company owns an approximate 51% interest in thenpeghip and exercises complete management caveolal
decisions for the partnership.

The Company has provided customary representagiodsvarranties and made customary affirmative agative
covenants to Lender pursuant to the terms of thar&ily Agreement, including without limitation, avenant t
not, without Lender § prior written consent, (a) enter into or be ayp#y a merger, consolidation, reorganizal
or exchange of stock or assets, (b) transfer agrasssets which could result in a material advetsnge to tr
business, (c) permit the sale or encumbrance ofDrhru, (d) incur additional indebtedness in ega&s$100,00(
except as previously disclosed to Lender or unsectrade accounts incurred in the ordinary coufdmisiness, ¢
(e) materially modify or amend, or permit Drive Tho modify or amend, any term or condition of dranchise
lease, management, employment, development, lingigethership forbearance or use or licensing ageeér
which Drive Thru or the Company is a party.

As reported on form 8-K, on December 22, 2014 wmmred that effective at the Companyg next Meeting ¢
Shareholders, currently scheduled for February0452the Board of Directors of the Company approsac
adopted an amendment to Article Ill, Section 3te&f Company s bylaws to decrease the maximum numb
directors of the Company from nine members to sewembers.

Concepts:
Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard

We operate Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custarduestts with two different formats that have evdleeer th
course of our history: a smaller, 880 to 1,000 sgdiaot building without indoor seating that is ésed on drive-
through service and limited walk up service; arj400 square foot, 70 seat dining room. We haxtbédu refine
the prototype design to reduce development costsraprove the return on investment model for futcoenpany-
owned and franchised restaurant expansion witri2@02square foot, 48 seat dining room design th#itoairy
forward all of the core design elements that enbame higher quality, all-natural brand image.

We operate at the upper end of the quick serviseweant ( “ QSR ” xategory in terms of the quality of «
ingredients and pricing strategy, without a $1 mendeep discounting. Consumer research has shewimat th
customer feels a strong connection to us and festier about choosing Good Times Burgers & Frozastd
over the larger hamburger QSR brands due to thityjoé our ingredients and brand personality. @sesult w
have developed a communications umbrella calle@ppgthess Made to Ordewith three primary brand pillars
Innovation, Quality and Connectedness. All of product initiatives are designed to support a braasition the
adds differentiation to our concept within the lscape of QSR competitors, particularly in the hargéi
segment. Within Innovation we strive to createdpicis and flavor profiles available only at Goodn&s Burgetr
& Frozen Custard that challenge QSR norms. Wiirality, our products are supported by Fresh, Adtuxal
Handcrafted attributes using high quality, regionagredients. Within Connectedness, we strive teat
connections with our customers based on the Cabolifgstyle, local brand partners and communitypsrp anc
involvement. We believe Good Times Burgers & EroZustard is the only QSR chain in the regionisgrires|
All Natural Angus beef and All Natural Chicken witlo hormones, no steroids, no antibiotics and hefyanaise!
animals with no animal byproducts in the feed.

We continued to promote our core product introdudiin fiscal 2014 with a combination of limitechg offers an
permanent product introductions including our BesslHand Breaded All Natural Chicken, Sweet Pdtaies
Summer and Holiday Shakes, $2 Hatch Valley New ktexsreen Chile Breakfast Burritos, Fresh Frozentaic
items and toppings for our Wild Fries and Fresh Edés. During 2015, we plan to focus on innovatanc
improvements in each of our menu categories ofdrgrghicken, sides, frozen custard and breakfast.

While our primary value proposition for the consuneederived from the quality of ingredients andtéaof ou
products, the current competitive and consumer dipgnenvironment continues to redefine value exqiéwis
within the QSR segment and a larger number of &etiens are being driven by the availability of métems &
lower price points. Our lower priced options aoagistent with our brand strategy to offer fregalrhandcrafte
food with unique flavor profiles in our core merategories of burgers, chicken, fries, frozen cudstgard fountai
products, and we continue to evolve our overall imnprice ranges available for our customers, inclgdi lowe
tier option, a mid-tier everyday option and a premiier for specialty products.



We will continue to focus on elevating the attrésibf our menu items that we believe give us ausjgpsition il
hamburger quick service restaurant&resh All Natural Angus beef and All Natural Chiokthat is free fror
hormones, steroids and antibiotics and humanedgdaivith no animal byproducts in the feed; Fresiz&m Custal
made fresh every few hours in every restaurantsh-@rilled Honey Cured Bacon; Fresh Lemonade; Ffas
Fries; All-Natural, HandBreaded Chicken; Freshly Sliced Produce and tgspisuch as real guacamole
sautéed mushrooms. We continue to invest in navipeggnt with the goal of achieving a more hot-ofé-grill,
cooked to order flavor that is more common in feasual and casual theme concepts than in quickcs
restaurants and with the goal of providing the bjestity French fries we can.

Bad Daddy’ s Burger Bar

Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar operates in the emergiamall box, "grill and bar segment, which has a higher ave
check and we believe is a step above fast casmalepts such as Five Guys and Smashburger and ¢hsox
concepts such as Chili* s and Red Robin in terfifead quality and price points, but below “ pokhcasual 'br
sports themed big box concepts, such as 8Xheesecake Factory and Buffalo Wild Wings. TWerage size of
Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar prototype restaurant is approximasB00 to 3,800 square feet which is smaller
other grill and bar segment competitors. The memsists of chef driven recipes within a relativei;nple men
of signature burgers, salads, sandwiches and appein a high energy, pop culture oriented atmesnhThe b
is dominated by craft beers and, while prominemugh to impact the overall feel of the design, wendt believ
it is so dominant as to be a turn off for familiedle believe the food quality is far superior tswa them
concepts, rivaling upscale casual concepts, withuniiem names that evoke an irreverent personatigd Daddy
s Burger Bar has been recognized for “ best burgerd has received many other accolades by the Giegaiortt
Carolina press and community as well as by USA Yadabeing one of the top 25 best burgers in thatcy.

Small box dining is the smallest, yet fastest granportion of fast and fukervice casual dining, reflecting year
evolution and innovation. We believe that Bad Dadd Burger Bar combines a reasonable average chigti
personality and convenient experience, innovatieeipes and above average quality yielding a stroalge
proposition. Fast casual has exhibited the mgjarfithe growth in the restaurant industry over ltgt decade ai
represents the largest segment within small boingiat nearly $23 billion in sales led by concepish as Pane
Bread, Chipotle, Noodles, Pei Wei, Five Guys anch€oBakery.

We believe that Bad Daddys’Burger Bar is differentiated from other casudl gnd bar concepts, with a focus
yet sufficiently diverse menu featuring a selectwhunique, chef-developed, “ gourmetnienu items in &
atmosphere with a purposefully unsophisticated. f#éith a per person average check that is highan tasui
theme concepts such as Chili * s and Red Robin, Baddy 's Burger Bar is similar to Burger Lounge, °
Counter and Bobby $ Burger Palace, but below Zinburger, Five Napkimg@r and other higher check conce
based on our knowledge of publicly available infatibn about those concepts. Bad DaddyBurger Bar offers
full bar with the majority of its alcohol sales dexd from craft microbrew beers. Sales are dividkdost equall
between lunch and dinner with hours of operatiamfrll am to 11 pm with restaurants open slighttgrlar
weekends, depending on the surrounding trade area.

Based on managemers teview of the average sales of the three operadistaurants that have been open for
than one year, we anticipate that Bad Dadsyestaurants will generate much higher salesqers foot than tt
average for quick service restaurants and higlaer the publicly reported sales per square foobatepts such
Panera Bread, Five Guys Burgers & Fries and 8Réstaurants. We estimate that it will requicaish investme
of $700,000 to $1,000,000 to open each restauratite State of Colorado and anticipate a returineastmer
model that is very competitive in the industry, éion our knowledge of existing Bad Daddg Burger Be
restaurants, the BDFD Franchise Disclosure Documeunt experience tdate and other publicly availal
information of similarly sized restaurant conceptfie existing Bad Daddy $ Burger Bar average sales
restaurant are much higher than the Good TimesdBsii§ Frozen Custard average sales per resta@asig, thei
average check.

BDFD has prepared a Franchise Disclosure Docunopetating systems and processes and registerezirtaaki
and we anticipate we will pursue expansion throtinghsale of franchises in certain markets.
Business Strategy

We are focused on continuing to improve the prbiiily of Drive Thru and developing additional Goddmes
Burgers & Frozen Custard restaurants in our howate sif Colorado while developing the Bad DaddyBurger Be
concept with compangwned restaurants in Colorado, Oklahoma and Kaasdswith franchised restaurants
other markets in the U.S. allowing us to leverdgssé strengths and opportunities:

e Good Times is a 27 year old company with a vibraigh quality brand position in Colorado.



« We have minimal bank debt, a healthy balance shitet positive cash flow from operations and
consecutive quarters of same store sales growth.

« We have an existing infrastructure with sophisddatsystems and processes in place that ci
significantly leveraged with a new growth concept.

« We have the exclusive right to develop Bad DaddyBurger Bar restaurants in Colorado, as we
optional development rights in Kansas and Oklahoma.

« We have a 48% ownership interest in BDFD, the té&swor of the Bad Daddy $ Burger Bar conce|
which we manage under a Management Services Agreeméh the goal of franchising primarily
experienced, multi-unit operators of other restaucancepts.

« We are partnering with successful serial restauraten Bad Daddy $§ Burger Bar, which we believe is
exciting new, emerging growth concept.

Our strategies for growing the Company includefetiewing:

1. Consistently Grow Same Store Restaurant SalM& will continue to focus on same store restausae:
driven by increases in customer transactions agdeases in the average customer check. Same shte
increased 14.2% in fiscal 2014 compared to fis€dl32and increased 12% in fiscal 2013 compared stca
2012. We hope to continue to increase same satge throughout fiscal 2015 through a midtieted approach
continually improve the Good Times Burgers & Frogarstard brand experience for our customers through

« Utilizing enhanced customer feedback tools to eatalur execution on the drivers of brand loyafiyoc
quality, speed of service, friendliness of emplayeeniqueness of offerings and customer pro
solving.

« Growing the breakfast daypart sales that is cugreg@nerating sales of approximately 8% to 9% ol
sales, consisting of Hatch Valley Green Chile Basi;i coffee and orange juice.

« Our line of all natural, hand breaded chicken teloite products that was introduced in March 2013ch
made Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard the oiR @hain in Colorado offering all natural beef
chicken raised without hormones or antibiotics aegetarian fed animals.

« Continuing to communicate our core value propositioat is centered on the availability of frestgh
quality, handcrafted products at several diffepite points across our menu.

« Augmenting our television advertising with an exgpash social media presence.

« Introducing both permanent and limited time produtiat are only available at Good Times Burge
Frozen Custard.

« Improving our drive thru speed of service.

« Continuing our reinvestment in our existing fa@kt with reimaging and remodeling to bring all afr
restaurants to the current brand standards in grsdbuilding finishes and appearance.

2. Develop new Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard tResants. We plan to build additional Good Tin
restaurants along the “ front rangef’Colorado, which primarily consists of the DenWéarketing Area from tt
southern boundary of the Denver metropolitan avehe Wyoming border, which we believe leveragasexisting
operational and marketing efficiencies. We plarexplore the feasibility of expanding the Good &grconcej
outside of Colorado through company-owned and fresed restaurants.

3. Improve our Income from Operations by Managing therofitability of Incremental Sales Growth.
Historically, depending on the sales volume of eaestaurant, we have experienced a 35% to 50%¢t
contribution on incremental sales. By managingptfeditability of compounding sales increases, \etdve we ca
continue to improve our income from operations per@entage of total revenues.

4. Expand Bad Daddy ' s Burger BaiWe intend to develop additional company-owned Badidy ' s Burge
Bar restaurants during fiscal 2015 and 2016 wilaiénlg the foundation for franchise growth througbF®. While
we have certain first rights of offer to purchasBIB s restaurants and BDI s interest in BDFD, we have
absolute rights to do so without BDk’decision to sell any of its interests and they fma able to sell BDI to
third party.



5. Reduce Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar Prime Cost8Ve believe that to optimize Bad Daddys’expansio
potential of both compangwned and franchised restaurants that the totabgwed cost of sales and total labor
benefits costs as a percentage of restaurant E4l€sime Costs ” )needs to be consistently below 64% al
current average restaurant sales volume. We dstithat the impact of Coloradas’tip credit minimum wage tr
increases to $5.21 per hour in 2015 increasesl#dtat costs approximately 3.5% of restaurant ssdesompared
the federal tip credit minimum wage of $2.13 peuhoOur goal is to work with the management of BB
continue to explore and refine purchasing efficieec menu engineering and product development,r
efficiencies, restaurant staffing strategies asthrgant operating systems to reduce the totaléP@osts.

Expansion strategy and site selection
Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard

We believe that our highest return on investmemoojoinity in our Good Times Drive Thru, Inc. subaig is tc
focus our growth in Colorado for operating and redirlg efficiencies off of our existing base of estants whil
building new restaurants within the Denver marlgtinea.

Any development of new Good Times Burgers & Frofaustard restaurants will involve our new proto
restaurant design on sites that are on or adjdodnig box or grocery store anchored shopping eergein higl
activity and employment areas. Our site selectmnnew restaurants is oriented toward slightlyhieigincom:
demographic areas than many of our urban locatoms most of our targeted trade areas are in relgitiigh
growth areas of the Denver and northern Coloradkets. We plan to explore a larger expansion oddsdime:
outside of Colorado with Company-owned or franathisestaurants.

We lease most of our sites. When we do purchadelevelop a site, we intend to ultimately sell deseloped si
into the saldeaseback market under a long term lease. Ourapyisite objective is to secure a suitable siteh
the decision to buy or lease as a secondary obgec@ur site criteria includes a mix of substdndiaily traffic,
density of at least 30,000 people within a threke madius, strong daytime population and employniise, rets
and entertainment traffic generators, good vigibdind easy access.

Bad Daddy’ s Burger Bar

Our development of the Bad Daddy ' s Burger Barceqt in companywned restaurants will focus on urban
suburban upper income demographic areas with mémiasehold incomes over $60,000, with a high comagor
of daytime employment, upscale retail, movie thesasnd hospitals, initially along the front rangeGmnlorado
BDFD will focus on the sale of multi-unit developmeagreements to experienced, well-capitalized iromlit
restaurant operators that have other competing concepts, as additional restaurantsearelabed by BDI and B
of Colo. We believe the Bad Daddg Burger Bar concept has expansion potential irawit) growing, upper sc:
demographic markets, as additional restaurantdereloped by BDI and BD of Colo.

Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar locations are in-line asmtcap locations in new and existing shopping ct
developments using approximately 3,500 to 3,80@szeet. While our Good Times Burgers & Frozerst@iu
restaurants are free standing and require exterssigedevelopment and entitlement processes, Battpas
Burger Bar restaurants can be developed much mdaoklg due to the requirement for only a buildingrmit,
signage approvals and liquor license without thedrfer extensive on- and défte development or land and zor
submittals and modifications. We estimate thatilittake approximately 75 to 90 days to developaal Daddy 's
Burger Bar from the time a building permit is isgue

Good Times Restaurant locations: We currently operate or franchise a total of tjhgeven Good Time
restaurants, of which thirty-five are in Coloradavo of the restaurants are in Wyoming and are ‘| tuand ",
operated pursuant to a Dual Brand Test AgreemehtTeco John ’ s International.

Denver, CO
Total Greater Metro  Wyoming
Compan-owned & Cc-developec 26 26
Franchisec 9 9
Dual brand franchised 2 2
37 35 2
6

December: 2013 2014
Compan-owned restauran 18 19
Cc-developec 7 7
Franchise operated restaura 12 11

Total restaurant 37 37

In December 2013 a Good Times franchisee closed/ablume restaurant in Lakewood, Colorado. In Nay4 :
franchisee terminated its Good Times franchise eagemt in the dual brand test concept and has siopgiénc
Good Times products at its North Dakota locatitm November 2014 we opened a compamyed restaurant
Highlands Ranch, Colorado and in December 2014 laged on the purchase of land for the developmér
company-owned restaurant in Centennial, Coloradbwie anticipate will open in the spring of 2015.

Bad Daddy ' s Restaurant locations We currently operate two Bad Daddy testaurants in the Denver, Color
greater metropolitan area. We expect to open dtt @olorado location in January 2015 and we haxeal mor
locations in various stages of negotiation for dgwment in fiscal 2015 and 201



Menu
Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard

The menu of a Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custasthurant is limited to hamburgers, cheeseburghbisiker
sandwiches, French fries, onion rings, fresh sqeaband frozen lemonades, soft drinks and frozetaaiproduct:
Each menu item is made to order at the time theomes places the order and is not pre-prepared.

In November 2012 we introduced a breakfast menwsisting of Hatch Valley Green Chile Breakfast Biasi
orange juice and coffee. Our hamburger pattiesrerde with Meyer All Natural, All Angus beef, sedven a 4"
bun. Hamburgers and cheeseburgers are garnishadfrnesh iceberg lettuce, fresh sliced sweet retrs
mayonnaise, guacamole, fresh grilled honey curemrbaand proprietary sauces. The chicken prodacisde
100% All Natural tenderloins that are hand breadeshch restaurant daily. Signature chicken prtsdinclude th
“ Hand Breaded Tenders, " “ Buffalo Chicken Tendef, Guacamole Bacon Chicken Tender, " and @uscai
Chicken. ” Equipment has been automated and equipped with easating computers to deliver a consis
product and minimize variability in operating syate

All natural Angus beef and 100% all natural chiclee raised without the use of any hormones, artidsi ol
animal byproducts that are normally used in thenaparket. We believe that all natural beef andlahicdeliver
better tasting product and, because of the rigopooi®cols and testing that are a part of the Mé&yJeNatural Bee
and Springer Mountain Farms Chicken processes, atsy minimize the risk of any food-borne bactegkatec
illnesses.

Fresh frozen custard is a premium ice cream (raguin excess of 10% butterfat content and 0.4%\exdis) witk
a proprietary vanilla blend that is prepared fraghly specialized equipment that minimizes the amaf air tha
is added to the mix and that creates smaller igstalls than other frozen dairy desserts. The mlisséascoope
similarly to hardpacked ice cream but is served at a slightly warteemperature. The resulting produc
smoother, creamier and thicker than typical sofveseor hardpacked ice cream products. We serve the fi
custard as vanilla and a flavor of the day in capd cones, specialty sundaes and “ Spoonbendersnik of
custard and toppings, and we anticipate it willtoare to be a significant percentage of sales acawmtinue ti
develop and promote custard products.

The breakfast menu is centered around Hatch V&imen Chile Burritos made with our own proprietgrger
chile recipe using Hatch Valley, New Mexico roastgéen chiles, eggs, potatoes, and cheese offeitadtive
choice of bacon, sausage or chorizo. We also affgremium coffee made by Daz Bog, a Colorado bae#de
roaster, and pure 100% orange juice.

Bad Daddy’ s Burger Bar

The menu of Bad Daddys Burger Bar consists of high quality, handcraftadyers made from a proprietary bl
of chuck and brisket with artisanal cheeses, tuneey, buffalo and chicken sandwiches, choppedds
appetizers, hand cut fries, house made potato ,chgred spun milk shakes, desserts, craft microbevesa ful
bar. Customers have their choice of 7 differentypaptions, over 24 fresh toppings, 10 cheesesosimel unusui
flavors.

Burger toppings include items such as homemade aneltz, hand breaded applewood smoked bacon, pes
recipes such as the “ Bad Ass Burger, " “ Mama R&o s Burger ” and “ Emilio * s Chicken Sandwich.
Chopped Salads include the “ Texican Chickendsdlghe “ Stella ' s Greek Saladdnd create your own sa

options.



Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar strives to provide proprietary flavarsd recipes available nowhere else with fi
handcrafted quality throughout the menu, includioigiting chef specials that often utilize ingredéetihat are loc.
to each market.

Marketing & Advertising
Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard

Our marketing strategy for Good Times Burgers &zeroCustard focuses on: 1) driving same storeuesiaisale
through attracting new customers and increasingréuency of visits by current customers; 2) comioating
specific product news and attributes to build sgrpoints of difference from competitors; and 3) coumicating .
unique, strong and consistent brand personality.

Media is an important component of building ourrateawareness and distinctiveness. We spent mostr
broadcast advertising dollars on cable televisi@uian during fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2014. The Cadior market i
an expensive media market, so most of our advegtigiacement is not in prime time but in early #até fringe
prime access and late news time slots. We augmentable television advertising with a social megresenc
that affords us a higher level of engagement witlrent customers and an increased level of progiveaways t
support high sales opportunity products.

We plan to continue to be active in digital andiglomedia in order to create more customer engagemigh ou
brand and to target specific consumer segments.hdVe increased our Facebook “ likeby’ approximately 60¢
during fiscal 2014 from fiscal 2013. We anticipdeveraging our customer email database and weetzsitreat
cost effective channels to target existing custemaad increase their frequency.

Bad Daddy’ s Burger Bar

Our marketing strategy for Bad Daddy ' s Burger Raiuses on iconic, istore merchandising materials and I
store marketing to the surrounding trade area araach restaurant, including public relations aaochmunity
based events. The focus is not on market wide gtioms or marketing but on the §tere customer experien
building word of mouth reputation and recommendeiand local public relations based on the pricarda an
recognitions received by Bad Daddy 'in its current market of Charlotte, North CaralinWe utilize trade ar
specific direct mail materials, particularly in gt of new restaurant openings, to drive trial antial awarenes
as well as targeted social media marketing. We ptadevelop an expanded menu of rotating chefials
featuring unique taste profiles and local ingrettiefior burgers, salads, sandwiches and appetigepgorted b
trade area specific beer offerings and bar promstio

Operations

Drive Thru, BDI and BD of Colo have extensive opieig, training and quality control systems in placel we pla
to take a “ best practicesapproach with management of BDI and BDFD to adaptsystems and processes wl
practicable for the Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar concepcept where noted below

Restaurant Management

Each Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard restagnapioys a general manager, one to two assistanagea
and approximately 15 to 25 employees, most of whaork parttime during three shifts. An eight to ten w
training program is utilized to train restaurantragers on all phases of the operation. Ongoingitigris provide:
as necessary. We believe that incentive compemsafiour restaurant managers is essential toubeess of ot
business. Accordingly, in addition to a salarynagerial employees may be paid a bonus based upéinigncy
in meeting financial, customer service and qualigrformance objectives tied to a monthly scorecaf
measures. Most of our managers participate inraib@lan based on their performance against theintimy
financial, operating, customer and people develorseorecard metrics.

Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar was developed as a chef driven corargputilizes a team of four to six managers i
operations at each restaurant. Managers are tramdshck of the house skills (prep, kitchen posiio line
management), front of the house service posititiest( server, bar) and all management functioAs. a full
service concept, the experience, qualifications eochpensation differs from Good Times Burgers & Zen
Custard and we recruit and train a separate opgradam for the Company ' s Bad Daddys 'Burger Be
operations. In April 2013, we hired Scott Somes Btike Maloney to lead the operations of BDFD and Bi
Colo, both of whom have extensive experience inagarng and developing full service restaurants. @anaget
participate in a bonus pool for each restauranedam a percentage of sales. Bonuses are awasted o
achieving financial, customer service and peopleigment goals and metrics.



Operational Systems and Processes

We believe that we have high level operating systamd processes relative to those in the industrpdth of ou
concepts. Detailed processes have been developédirly, daily, weekly and monthly responsibégithat driv
consistency across our system of restaurants affichip@nce against our standards within different garts. W
utilize a labor program to determine optimal stajfneeds of each restaurant based on its actuahceisflow ani
demand. We also employ several additional operatiwols to continuously monitor and improve spekservice
food waste, food quality, sanitation, financial ragement and employee development. In fiscal 20%&
implemented a new point of sale computer systeail af our Good Times restaurants that will imprae ability
to analyze transaction, sales mix and employee ttatawe believe can decrease our food waste aptbira th
effectiveness of store level marketing initiativG%he order system at each Good Times Burgers &dfrcCustar
restaurant is equipped with an internal timing dewthat displays and records the time each ortteste prepal
and deliver. During fiscal 2014, the average tti@hsaction time for Good Times from the pointoofler to th
delivery of food at the window was approximatelyl Iseconds. Our goal is to reduce that total tictimgatime tc
160 seconds or less.

We use several sources of customer feedback taaeakach restaurants’ service and quality performanr
including an extensive secret shopper program addames restaurants, customer comment phonetétenhon
surveys and website comments. During fiscal 20@4mplemented a new customer feedback tool thategate
all social media comments as well as store by storeeys each week for each Good Times restaukéitbelievi
that information will assist us in evaluating oppoities for improved execution of the customerezignce.

Training

We strive to maintain quality and consistency isteaf our restaurants for both Good Times and Badd ’s
through the careful training and supervision of @lir employees at all levels and the establishnoénianc
adherence to, high standards relating to persquerérmance, food and beverage preparation andtemaince ¢
our restaurants. Each manager must complete &b teigen week training program, be certified omesal cori
processes and is then closely supervised to shdlw dmmprehension and capability before they arewadtl tc
manage autonomously. All of our training and depeient is based upon a “ train, test, certify,ragat” cycle
around standards and operating processes at alsleWe conduct a serairnual performance review with e
manager to discuss prior performance and futurtopeance goals. We have a defined weekly and inipigba
setting process around service, employee develdpfirencial management and store maintenance goaéven
restaurant. Additionally we have a library of vidaining tools to drive training efficiencies aodnsistency ar
we are currently developing the same platformfierBad Daddy ' s operations.

Recruiting and Retention

We seek to hire experienced restaurant managersOpedating Partners. We support employees by in§
competitive wages and benefits, including a 40p{h, medical insurance, and incentive plans atyelewel tha
are tied to performance against key goals and tb@gsc We motivate and prepare our employees byiging
them with opportunities for increased responsibgitand advancement. We also provide various aticentives
including vacations, car allowances, monthly perfance bonuses and monetary rewards for manager
develop future managers for our restaurants. e liraplemented an online screening and hiring that ha
proven to reduce hourly employee turnover.

Franchising

For Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard, we hawpared form area rights and franchise agreeme
Franchise Disclosure Document ( “ FDD "apd advertising material to be utilized in soliwiti prospectiv
franchisees, however we have not been activelyxisoli new Good Times franchisees. We have hicadlyi
sought to attract franchisees that are experienegtdurant operators, well capitalized and haveodestrated th
ability to develop one to five restaurants. Weigew sites selected for franchises and monitor perémce c
franchise units. We are not currently solicitirganfranchisees and anticipate building additiorahpanyewnec
Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard restaurantsiriay choose to begin to solicit new franchiseesfarket:
outside of Colorado.

We estimate that it will cost a Good Times Burgé&rg-rozen Custard franchisee on average approxiy
$750,000 to $1,200,000 to open a restaurant witingliroom seating, including papening costs and worki
capital, assuming the land is leased. A franchigpeally will pay a royalty of 4% of net salexy advertisini
materials fee of at least 1.5% of net sales, parigipation in regional advertising up to an aiddial 4% of ne
sales, or a higher amount approved by the adwegtisboperative, and initial development and frasehiee
totaling $25,000 per restaurant. Among the sesvégel materials which we provide to franchiseesieeselectio
assistance, plans and specifications for constnaif the Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard weatds, a
operating manual which



includes product specifications and quality conpraicedures, training, osite opening supervision and advice f
time to time relating to operation of the francklisestaurants.

After a Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard frapetagreement is signed, we actively work with amahitor
our franchisees to ensure successful franchiseatipes as well as compliance with our systems
procedures. During the development phase, wetasglse selection of sites and the developmemrofotype an
building plans, including all required changes bgal municipalities and developers. We provideopening teat
of trainers to assist in the opening of the restauand training of the employees. We advise taachisee ¢
menu, management training, marketing, and emplaelopment. On an ongoing basis we conduct stds
reviews of all franchise restaurants in key areafuding product quality, service standards, rastaucleanlines
and sanitation, food safety and people development.

We have entered into eleven Good Times & Frozentadisfranchise agreements in the greater De
metropolitan area. In addition, seven joietature restaurants are operating in the Denveropgitan area med
market. Dual-branded franchised restaurants ap@ragillette and Sheridan, Wyoming.

For Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar, our focus on franchising will be thgb our ownership in, and managemen
BDFD. BDFD has a current FDD, form area rights fradchise agreements and two existing franchiseesgent
signed. We intend to expand the marketing of Badidy ' s Burger Bar franchises on a broader scale &
concept is further developed by BDI and BD of Cole anticipate that a franchisee will typicallyymaroyalty o
4% to 5% of net sales and will participate in anvédising Fund and local advertising by contribgtimp to 2% c
net sales. Initial development and franchise &gesrojected to be $35,000 per restaurant. \filmae that it wil
cost a Bad Daddys Burger Bar franchisee $590,000 to $1,382,00pema 3,000 to 3,800 square foot restal
in an in-line or endzap retail center, based on the BDFD Franchisel@igee Document and our knowledge of
development costs of the existing Bad Daddy Bwrger Bar restaurants. BDFD will provide similsmppor
services to its franchisees and licensees that weide to Good Times Burgers & Frozen Cus
franchises. BDFD has entered into seven licenseeatents for restaurants in North Carolina operated®DI,
three license agreements for restaurants in Cadomad two franchise agreements.

Management Information Systems

Financial and management control is maintainedutjinothe use of automated data processing and beed
accounting and management information systemsatbgirovide. Sales, labor and cash data is cotledadly via ¢
restaurant back office system which gathers daim fthe restaurant point-shle system. Management rece
daily, weekly and monthly reports identifying foddbor and operating expenses and other significaitators o
restaurant performance. The major managementiraiion systems are divided by function:

« Restaurant point of sale;

« Restaurant back-of-house;

o Financial;

« Payroll/human resources; and
« Internal operational reports.

We believe that these reporting systems are sapdiistt and enhance our ability to control and me
operations. We recently implemented new pointabé quipment for our Good Times restaurants th#te sam
as used in our Bad Daddy ' s restaurants.

Food Preparation, Quality Control & Purchasing

We believe that we have excellent food quality dsads relative to the industry. Our systems aisgded t
protect our food supply throughout the preparapicocess. We inspect specific qualified manufactuesad wor
together with those manufacturers to provide smetibns and quality controls. Our operations ngamaent tean
are trained in a comprehensive safety and sanitatiourse provided by the National Restal
Association. Minimum cook temperature requiremartd line checks throughout the day ensure thdysafe
quality of both burgers and other items we useuinrestaurants.

We currently purchase 100% of the food and papepl@s for our Good Times Burgers & Frozen Cus
restaurants and the majority of the food and pappplies for our Bad Daddys' restaurants from Food Service
America. In addition, we maintain multiple apprdv&uppliers for all key components of our menu tbgaite risk
and ensure supply. Suppliers are chosen basedthporability to provide (i) a continuous suppliproduct the
meets all safety and quality specifications, @yiktics expertise and freight management, (iigdoict innovatio
and differentiation, (iv) customer service, (v) nsparency of business relationships and (vi) coitiye
pricing. Specified products are distributed torefitaurants through Food Services of America uadegotiated
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contract directly to our restaurants two to foumds per week depending on restaurant requiremgvésdo nc
believe that the current reliance on this solerithistor will have any longerm material adverse effect since
believe that there are a sufficient number of othepliers from which food and paper supplies cdndgurchase
with little or no interruption in service. We dmthanticipate any difficulty in continuing to oltaan adequa
quantity of food and paper supplies of acceptabldity and at acceptable prices.

Employees

At September 30, 2014, we had approximately 583l@eps of which 475 are hourly employees and 1@
salaried employees working full time. We consider employee relations to be good. None of ourleyags ar
covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Competition

The restaurant industry, including the fast foodnsent, is highly competitive. Good Times BurgersF&zer
Custard competes with a large number of other hageporiented fast food restaurants in the areas in hwh
operates. Many of these restaurants are ownedp@idted by regional and national restaurant chamasy o
which have greater financial resources and expegiehan we do. Restaurant companies that currentiypet
with Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard in the emarket include McDonald ’ s, Burger King, Werldy,
Carl ’ s Jr., Sonic, Jack in the Box and Freddy. 'Double drive-through restaurant chains such allyR s
Hamburgers and Checker ' s Drive-In Restaurantigiwturrently operate a total of over 800 doublgedthrougt
restaurants in various markets in the United Staeesnot currently operating in Colorado. Culverand Freddy
s are the only significant competitors offeringzea custard as a primary menu item operating irDiever an
Colorado Springs markets and both have a signifipamsence in Midwestern markets that may be tedgéd
expansion. Additional “ fast casualhamburger restaurants are being developed in therdim market, such
Smashburger and Five Guys; however, they do not daivethrough service and generate an average per |
check that is approximately 50% higher than therage check at a Good Times Burgers & Frozen Cu
restaurant.

We believe that Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custaay have a competitive advantage in terms of tyuaf
product compared to traditional fast food hamburgeains. Early development of our double difesugt
concept in Colorado has given us an advantageaitier double drivéhrough chains that may seek to expand
Colorado because of our brand awareness and presstaurant locations. Nevertheless, we may bea
competitive disadvantage to other restaurant chaimigh greater name recognition and marke
capability. Furthermore, most of our competitansthie fastood business operate more restaurants, have
established longer, and have greater financialurees and name recognition than we do. Theresis attivi

competition for management personnel, as well aatfcactive commercial real estate sites suitétleestaurants.

Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar competes with both local aational grill and bar concepts and gourmégetter burge
" concepts. As the concept is expanded, Bad Dadsl\Burger Bar will compete against concepts suciRec
Robin, Chili * s, Burger Lounge, The Counter, andbBy ' s Burger Palace. There are other buogetric fas
casual concepts such as Five Guys Burgers & FniesSanashburger that operate at a lower averagensasthec
than Bad Daddy s Burger Bar and others such as Zinburger, Bargéwand Five Napkin Burger that operate
a higher average customer check. We believe thdtBaddy 's Burger Bar has an advantage in the handci
quality of its food, distinctiveness of its atmospd and uniqueness of its menu offerings. NevietseBad Dadc
' s Burger Bar may be at a competitive disadvantaggther restaurant chains with greater name rétog.

Intellectual Property

We have registered our mark “ Good Times! DriveuTBurgers ” §M) with the State of Colorado. We have

registered our mark “ Good Times Burgers & Frozarst@rd "federally and with the State of Colorado.

received approval of our federal registration @dod Times "in 2003. In addition we own trademarks or ser
marks that have been registered, or for which apfitins are pending, with the United States Patedt{Tradema
Office including but not limited to: “ Big Daddy Ban Cheeseburger, " “ Chicken Dunkers, Méppiness Made
Order, ” “ Mighty Deluxe, " “ Pawbender, " * Spooahder, ” “ Wild Fries, " and “ Wild Dippin ' Saucé. Our
trademarks expire between 2015 and 2018.

BDI has registered the mark “ Bad Daddy ' s Bur@ar " with the United States Patent and Trader
Office. BDI owns this mark and licenses it to BDFDhe license agreement does not significantlyt IBDFD * s
right and ability to use or license the use ofrtiaek.

The trademarks and the proprietary aspects of #te@addy 's Burger Bar operating system, such as for exe
operating manuals, unique design elements andrtiggiel equipment of the restaurants and the unigcipes, ar
owned by BDI. BDI has licensed the trademarks sudh intellectual property aspects to BDFD fouie in

11



sublicensing and franchising the Bad DaddyBurger Bar restaurants. The license fee is $1p@00ear and tt
term of the license is the longer of 30 years @rtdrm of any Bad Daddys Burger Bar franchise agreem
BDFD is obligated to use such intellectual propémyaccordance with reasonable directions from BDd th
license can be terminated following any breachhefforegoing by BDFD which is not cured within 68yd afte
written notice of such breach. Because of BBI32% ownership of BDFD and its designation of gonity of the
BDFD Managers, along with BDFD s intention to use the intellectual property in @pproved manner, t
Company views the possibility of such terminatiorbé remote.

Government Regulation

Each of our restaurants is subject to the reguiatiof various health, sanitation, safety and figereies in th
jurisdiction in which the restaurant is locatediffibulties or failures in obtaining the requireidénses or approv:
could delay or prevent the opening of a new reataurFederal and state environmental regulatieng mot had
material effect on our operations. More stringerd @aried requirements of local governmental bodiiis respec
to zoning, land use and environmental factors caoeldy or prevent development of new restauranfsiticula
locations. We are subject to the Fair Labor StedglaAct, which governs such matters as minimum &,
overtime, and other working conditions. In additiove are subject to the Americans with Disab#itct, whict
requires restaurants and other facilities openht public to provide for access and use of faedlitby th
handicapped. Management believes that we aremplkance with the Americans with Disabilities ActWe will
be subject to the Affordable Care Act beginnin@@15 and believe that we will have the requiredtheasuranc
benefits for eligible employees.

We are also subject to federal and state laws a&ggl franchise operations, which vary from registm an
disclosure requirements in the offer and sale ahdhises to the application of statutory standaedgilating
franchise relationships. Many state franchise lampose restrictions on the franchise agreememtduding
limitations on non-competition provisions and teentination or norrenewal of a franchise. Some states re:
that franchise materials be registered before fimes can be offered or sold in that state.

In addition, each Bad Daddys’Burger Bar restaurant requires a liquor licemskadherence to the attendant |
and requirements regulating the serving and consampf alcohol. Alcoholic beverage control redidas gover
various aspects of these restaurardaily operations, including the minimum age of pag and employees, ho
of operation, advertising, wholesale purchasing iamdntory control, handling and storage. Typigalicenses t
sell alcoholic beverages will require annual rereavad may be suspended or revoked at any timedose; th
definition of which varies by locality.

Available Information: Our Internet website address is www.goodtimesbsrgem. We make available free
charge through our website ’ s investor relatiarfsrimation section our annual reports on FormKl@uarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forif, &nd any amendments to those reports filed witfumished t
the SEC under applicable securities laws as soageas®nably practical after we electronically Slech materi:
with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our website infation is not part of or incorporated by refereimte this Annue
Report on Form 10-K.

Special Note About Forward-Looking Statements: From time to time the Company makes oral and en
statements that reflect the Company's current eapecs regarding future results of operations, necaic
performance, financial condition and achievemeritthe Company. A forwartboking statement is neithel
prediction nor a guarantee of future events. Wewityenever possible, to identify these forwbrdking statemen
by using words such as "anticipate,” "assume,"iébe|" "estimate," "expect,"” "intend,” "plan," "pect," "may,’
"will," "would," and similar expressions. Certaforward-looking statements are included in this rrat0K,
principally in the sections captioned "Businesstid d'Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firsd
Condition and Results of Operations." Forward-logkstatements are related to, among other things:

« business objectives and strategic plans;

« Operating strategies;

« our ability to open and operate additional restaisrarofitably and the timing of such openings;
« restaurant and franchise acquisitions;

« anticipated price increases;

« expected future revenues and earnings, comparablenaneomparable restaurant sales, resul
operations, and future restaurant growth (both @mgwned and franchised);



estimated costs of opening and operating netauesnts, including general a



administrative, marketing, frhise development and restaurant operating ¢

« anticipated selling, general and administrative eeiges and restaurant operating costs, inclt
commodity prices, labor and energy costs;

« future capital expenditures;

« Our expectation that we will have adequate casim foperations and credit facility borrowings to
all future debt service, capital expenditure andkivg capital requirements in fiscal year 2014;

« the sufficiency of the supply of commodities anoidiapool to carry on our business;
e Success of advertising and marketing activities;

« the absence of any material adverse impact arisirigof any current litigation in which we &
involved;

« impact of the adoption of new accounting standaud our financial and accounting systems
analysis programs;

« expectations regarding competition and our conmipetadvantages;
« impact of our trademarks, service marks, and qiheprietary rights; and
« effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting.

Although we believe that the expectations refledtedur forwardlooking statements are based on reasor
assumptions, such expectations may prove to berialBteincorrect due to known and unknown risks
uncertainties.

In some cases, information regarding certain ingoarfactors that could cause actual results tediffiaterially
from any forwardlooking statements appears together with suchrstate In addition, the factors described ur
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates in Rgrttem 7, and Risk Factors in Part I, Iltem 1A,vasll as othe
possible factors not listed, could cause actuallteso differ materially from those expressed anvfardiooking
statements, including, without limitation, the fslling: concentration of restaurants in certain ratgrkand lack c
market awareness in new markets; changes in dislgosecome; consumer spending trends and habitseaser
competition in the quick service restaurant margests and availability of food and beverage inegntour ability
to attract qualified managers, employees, and friares; changes in the availability of capital mdd facility
borrowings; costs and other effects of legal cldimemployees, franchisees, customers, vendorkrsttders ani
others, including settlement of those claims; éifeness of management strategies and decisionather
conditions and related events in regions whererestaurants are operated; and changes in accowstéindards
policies and practices or related interpretationauitors or regulatory entities.

All forward-looking statements speak only as of ttete made. All subsequent written and oral foddaoking
statements attributable to us, or persons actingpumbehalf, are expressly qualified in their esttir by the
cautionary statements. Except as required by i ,undertake no obligation to update any forwlaaking
statement to reflect events or circumstances dfterdate on which it is made or to reflect the owmnce ol
anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstsince

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following riskcfars before making an investment decision witlpees to the
Company ' s securities. You are cautioned thatidiefactors discussed below are not exhaustive.

We have accumulated losséd/e have incurred losses in every fiscal year inZuyears since inception excep
four fiscal years. As of September 30, 2014 wedradccumulated deficit of $20,013,000. We mayeteloss fo
the current fiscal year ending September 30, 201%eomay not be profitable.

If we are unable to continue to increase same steades at existing restaurants, our ability to attgprofitability
may be adversely affectellVe must increase same store sales at our exisgstgurants to attain profitabilit
which we have done for the past 17 consecutivetepsar Sales increases will depend in part on ticeess of ou
advertising and promotion of new and existing méams and consumer acceptance. We cannot assireutt
advertising and promotional efforts will in fact lseiccessful. If our same store sales decreasepandthel
operating costs increase, our ability to attairfifability will be adversely affected.

New restaurants, when and if opened, may not befipable, if at all, for several months We anticipate that ot
new restaurants, when and if opened, will genetaltg several months to reach normalized operéives due tc
inefficiencies typically associated with new resgais, including lack of market awareness, the rieetire anc
train a sufficient number of employees, operatingtg, which are often materially greater during fir& severa
months of operation than thereafter, ppening costs and other factors. In addition,awgsints opened in ne
markets may
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open at lower average weekly sales volumes thamumsits opened in existing markets, and may hayleer
restaurantevel operating expense ratios than in existingketar Sales at restaurants opened in new markagt:
take longer to reach average annual compamyed restaurant sales, if at all, thereby affgcthe profitability of
these restaurants.

Our operations are susceptible to the cost of arfhges in food availability which could adverselyfect our
operating results. Our profitability depends in part on our ability &nticipate and react to changes in f
costs. Various factors beyond our control, inahgdiadverse weather conditions, governmental rdguol
production, availability, recalls of food produesd seasonality may affect our food costs or caudisruption ir
our supply chain. We enter into annual contradts aur chicken and other miscellaneous suppli€sr contract:
for chicken are fixed price contracts. Our cortsdor beef are generally based on current markee® plus ¢
processing fee. Changes in the price or avaitgbdf chicken or beef or other commodities couldtemally
adversely affect our profitability. We cannot potdvhether we will be able to anticipate and re@cthanging
food costs by adjusting our purchasing practicesraanu prices, and a failure to do so could adiyeeféect our
operating results. In addition, because we prositi®alue-priced 'product, we may not be able to pass along |
increases to our customers.

Macroeconomic conditions could affect our operatingesults. The recent economic downturn, continu
disruptions in the overall economy, including thegoing impacts of the housing crisis, high unemplegt anc
financial and market volatility, and the relatectlifees in business and consumer confidence, adyeafected
customer traffic and sales throughout the restauraustry, including the QSR category. For examplur sam:
store sales decreased in fiscal 2008, fiscal 20@3tze first ten months of fiscal 2010. If the eamy experience
another downturn or there are continued uncer&gntegarding economic recovery, consumer spendiyg lva
affected, which may adversely affect our saleshim future. A proliferation of heavy discounting byr major
competitors may also negatively affect our salesaperating results.

Price increases may impact customer visiWe may make price increases on selected menu iterosder tc
offset increased operating expenses we believebailtecurring. Although we have not experiencephiicant
consumer resistance to our past price increasésiefyrice increases may deter customers fromingsiour
restaurants or affect their purchasing decisions.

The hamburger restaurant market is highly compet#i. The hamburger restaurant market is hic
competitive. Our competitors in the QSR segmemiubte many recognized national and regional flast:
hamburger restaurant chains, such as McDonal®dugger King, Wendy ’ s, Carl $ Jr., Sonic, Jack in the Bc
Freddy ' s and Culver’s. We also compete witlalnmegional and local hamburger and other fasd restaurant:
many of which feature drivéirough service. Most of our competitors have gretinancial resources, marketi
programs and name recognition than we do. Disdoginty our QSR competitors may adversely affect
revenues and profitability of our restaurants.

While Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar operates in the ttdreburger "restaurant segment, it offers a relatively br
menu and competes with other full service restaarsimch as Chili 5§, Red Robin and other local and regional
service restaurants. Additionally, customers dhlmur Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard restdsrand nev
Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar restaurants are also customers ofcémstal hamburger restaurants such as Five
Burgers & Fries and Smashburger.

Sites for new restaurants may be difficult to acgai Location of our restaurants in higtaffic and readily
accessible areas is an important factor for oucesg: Our Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custardedhirough
restaurants require sites with specific charadtesignd there are a limited number of suitablessétvailable in oL
geographic markets. Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar tgat#ts will be operated out of leased in-line and-&ap retai
locations as opposed to freestanding Good TimegeBsir& Frozen Custard locations. Since suitalgations are
in great demand, in the future we may not be ablebtain optimal sites for either of our restauremncepts at
reasonable cost. In addition, we cannot assurehaitthe sites we do obtain will be successful.

If our franchisees cannot develop or finance newstaurants, build them on suitable sites or open rinen
schedule, our growth and success may be impedechnchisees may not be able to negotiate accepledde o
purchase terms for the sites, obtain the neceggargits and government approvals or meet construsithedules
From time to time in the past, we have agreedtenel or modify development schedules and we masoda the
future. Any of these problems could slow our gtoveind reduce our franchise revenues. Additionaly,
franchisees depend upon financing from banks aherdinancial institutions in order to construcdaopen nev
restaurants. Difficulty in obtaining adequate fineng adversely affects the number and rate of restauran
openings by our franchisees and adversely affaatsfudure franchise revenues. We do not presemilye any
franchised restaurants under development.
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Our franchisees could take actions that could hawar business.Franchisees are independent contractors ar
not our employees. We provide training and supfwftanchisees; however, franchisees operate thsiaurant
as independent businesses. Consequently, théygoifranchised restaurant operations may be dshed by an
number of factors beyond our control. Moreovesnéhisees may not successfully operate restauraatsnanne
consistent with our standards and requirementsay not hire and train qualified managers and otbstauran
personnel. Our image and reputation, and the imadereputation of other franchisees, may suffeteriadly, and
system-wide sales could significantly decline,uf ranchisees do not operate successfully.

We depend on key management employed& believe our current operations and future ssecdepend large
on the continued services of our management emednyia particular Boyd E. Hoback, our president ahibf
executive officer, and Scott LeFever, our vice plest of operations. Although we have entered iatt
employment agreement with Mr. Hoback, he may valrilyt terminate his employment with us at any tima.
addition, we do not currently maintain key-persesurance on Messrs. Hoback ’ s or LeFewelife. The loss ¢
Messrs. Hoback ' s or LeFeves 'services, or other key management personnekl tave a material adverse eff
on our financial condition and results of operagion

Labor shortages could slow our growth or harm ouudiness. Our success depends in part upon our abilil
attract, motivate and retain a sufficient numbenguwdlified, highenergy employees. Qualified individuals nee
to fill these positions are in short supply in soareas. The inability to recruit and retain thas#viduals may
delay the planned openings of new restaurants smitren high employee turnover in existing restatsa which
could harm our business. Additionally, competitionqualified employees could require us to pagher wages t
attract sufficient employees, which could resulhigher labor costs. Most of our employees ard paian hourl
basis. The employees are paid in accordance wifilicable minimum wage regulations. Accordinghny:
increase in the minimum wage, whether state omédeould have a material adverse impact on oginess.

We are subject to extensive government regulatibattmay adversely hinder or impact our ability tawern
various aspects of our business including our atyilito expand and develop our restaurant3he restaurar
industry is subject to various federal, state awéll government regulations, including those netatb the sale ¢
food. While in the past we have been able to ataad maintain the necessary governmental licepsesyits anc
approvals, our failure to maintain these licengesmits and approvals, including food licenses,|ld¢@dversely
affect our operating results. Difficulties or faies in obtaining the required licenses and appsasauld delay o
result in our decision to cancel the opening of mestaurants. Local authorities may suspend oy demewal of
our food licenses if they determine that our comndiaes not meet applicable standards or if thezechanges i
regulations.

Various federal and state labor laws govern ouwatimiship with our employees and affect operatiogt€ Thes
laws govern minimum wage requirements, overtime pagal and rest breaks, unemployment tax ratesesor
compensation rates, citizenship or residency requénts, child labor regulations and sales taxeglitional
governmenimposed increases in minimum wages, overtime paid feaves of absence and mandated h
benefits may increase our operating costs.

The federal Americans with Disabilities Act profigidiscrimination on the basis of disability in fat
accommodations and employment. Although our reatds are designed to be accessible to the disalédoulc
be required to make modifications to our restagrémiprovide service to, or make reasonable accatatiums for
disabled persons.

We are also subject to federal and state laws#gaiate the offer and sale of franchises and &spéthe licensor-
licensee relationship. Many state franchise lawgpadse restrictions on the franchise agreement,udiad

limitations on non-competition provisions and tleentination or norrenewal of a franchise. Some states rec

that franchise materials be registered before fimes can be offered or sold in the state.

Our Bad Daddy 's Burger Bar restaurants will also be subject &tesand local laws that regulate the sal
alcoholic beverages. Alcoholic beverage contrgltations will govern various aspects of theseangsints ‘daily
operations, including the minimum age of patronsl @mployees, hours of operation, advertising, wsalé
purchasing and inventory control, handling andagjer Typically, licenses to sell alcoholic bevesawill require
annual renewal and may be suspended or revokechyatime for cause, the definition of which varieg
locality. The failure of any of our Bad Daddyg Burger Bar restaurants to timely obtain and ra&irdny require:
licenses, permits or approvals to serve alcohdiebages could delay or prevent the opening ofrarastaurant ¢
prevent regular day-tday operations, including the sale of alcoholic dvages, at a restaurant that is alre
operating, any of which would adversely affect business.
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Health concerns relating to the consumption of beehicken or other food products could affect comsar
preferences and could negatively impact our resutif operations. Like other restaurant chains, consul
preferences could be affected by health concermmitathe avian influenza, also known as bird flu, the
consumption of beef, the key ingredient in manypwf menu items, or negative publicity concerningdfauality,
illness and injury generally, such as negative ipiipl concerning E. coli, “* mad cow ” or “ foot-andouth ”
disease, publication of government or industry ifigd concerning food products served by us, orrotiealth
concerns or operating issues stemming from oneusstt or a limited number of restaurants. Thigatige
publicity may adversely affect demand for our fomed could result in a decrease in customer traffiour
restaurants. If we react to the negative publibitychanging our concept or our menu we may los¢oauers wh
do not prefer the new concept or menu, and we mapa able to attract a sufficient new customeehiagroduct
the revenue needed to make our restaurants piefitit addition, we may have different or addiabnompetitor:
for our intended customers as a result of a contiegrige and may not be able to compete succesafdinst thos
competitors. A decrease in customer traffic to mstaurants as a result of these health concermegative
publicity or as a result of a change in our menuoasrcept could materially harm our business.

Risks Related to Bad Daddy ’ s Relationship

Our ability to succeed with the Bad Daddys’ Burger Bar restaurant concept will require sigmifint capital
expenditures and management attentioldVe believe that new openings of Bad DaddyBurger Bar restaurar
are likely to serve as a contributor of our newt gmowth and increased profitability over the longgrm based o
the unit economics of that concept. Our abilitysteeceed with this new concept will require sigmwifit capita
expenditures and management attention and is subjeertain risks in addition to those of openigew Gooc
Times Burgers & Frozen Custard restaurant, inclydinstomer acceptance of and competition with the Baddy
' s Burger Bar concept. If the “ ramp-up " perifudt new Bad Daddy § Burger Bar restaurants does not mee!
expectations, our operating results may be adweedétcted. There can be no assurance that webwithble tc
successfully develop and grow the Bad DaddyBurger Bar concept to a point where it will beeopmofitable o
generate positive cash flow. We may not be ab#gttact enough customers to meet targeted le¥gisréormance
at new Bad Daddys Burger Bar restaurants because potential cussomay be unfamiliar with the concept or
atmosphere or menu might not be appealing to thémve cannot successfully execute our growth sgigts for
Bad Daddy ’ s Burger Bar, our business and resfiltperations may be adversely affected.

Our growth, including the development of Bad Dadty Burger Bar restaurants, may strain our managem
and infrastructure. In addition to new openings of Bad Daddy Burger Bar restaurants, we also plan to remr
and reimage existing Good Times Burgers & Frozest&d restaurants. In addition, we believe theey ine
opportunities to open or franchise new Good TimagyBrs & Frozen Custard restaurants from timerneti This
growth will increase our operating complexity andge increased demands on our management andtinétase,
including our current restaurant management systdinancial and management controls, and infornme
systems. If our infrastructure is insufficientsigpport our growth, our ability to open new restais, including th
development of the Bad Daddy ' s Burger Bar conogpuld be adversely affected.

Bad Daddy’ s Burger Bar is subject to all of the risks of alagively new business, including competition, a
there is no guarantee of a return on our capitahiastment into BDFD or BD of Colo.Bad Daddy s Burger Ba
is a relatively new business concept. Existing Badldy s Burger Bar restaurants have been in existenc
approximately five years and are currently locatedNorth Carolina and South Carolina. Becausehef $mal
number of existing Bad Daddys’Burger Bar restaurants and the relatively shenibgd of time that they have be
in operation, there is substantial uncertainty #utitional restaurants in other locations willdoecessful. There
no guarantee that BDFD will be successful in offgrBad Daddy § Burger Bar franchises throughout the U.S
that, if and when such franchises are grantedraseurants developed by franchisees will be sg@desThere it
also substantial uncertainty that the BDFD franiolgisusiness will be successful in view of the $atttat BDFC
has sold only two Bad Daddys’'Burger Bar restaurant franchises to date andhikaestaurant franchising busin
is very competitive. If BDFD is unsuccessful itratting Bad Daddy & Burger Bar franchisees and accordir
attaining broad-based consumer recognition of thd Baddy ’'s Burger Bar restaurants, it could adversely a
the revenues of the Company ' s Bad Daddy ' s BuBge restaurants.

Under the operating agreement of BDFD, there wilelmo distribution of any net cash profits during éhfirst
three years unless approved by all the Class A merstof BDFD. We have acquired a 48% voting owners
interest in BDFD in exchange for an initial capitaintribution of $750,000, of which we paid thesfi$375,00(
installment on April 15, 2013 and we paid the sec®375,000 installment in December 2013. The djper
agreement of BDFD provides that the Company and &Y be required to make additional capital contidns to
BDFD of up to an aggregate of $1,000,000 upon enitequest of BDFD $ Board of Managers. Such additio
capital contributions, if required, will be in aedance with the Company ’ s and BDd then respective percentt
interests in
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BDFD. Accordingly, the Company s portion of such additional capital contributioifsrequired, prior to an
change in BDFD ownership, will be up to $480,000the additional capital contributions are reqdinender the
BDFD operating agreement, the Company intends tg f& required portion out of working capi
reserves. However, if the Company does not haffecismt working capital reserves at the time trapital call is
made, the Company may have to obtain funds fromerasburces and such funds may not be availabléd
Company on favorable terms or at all.

Under the operating agreement of BDFD, there vellno distribution of any net cash profits during fhist three
years unless approved by all the Class A membeBD#D. Thus, we may not receive any return on iaitial
capital contribution to BDFD, or any subsequentimithl capital contribution we may be requirediake, during
the first three years of BDFD ’ s operations.

The Company does not have a majority voting intéres BDFD and the Company 's Management Service
Agreement with BDFD has a limited term of three yea The Company has acquired a 48% voting membe
interest in BDFD, with the remaining 52% voting mwership interest in BDFD currently held by BDI. €l
operating agreement of BDFD provides that BDFD Wélmanaged by its fiveeember Board of Managers, whi
currently consists of three members designatedyaBd two members designated by the Company. waugly,
the Company does not have a majority voting inteie$BDFD, nor does it control a majority of the &d of
Managers. As a consequence, the Company will @@thbe to control certain decisions regarding BDAInong
other things, the annual budget of BDFD will be mmed by a majority of the Board of Managers, whichjority
may be achieved without the participation of thenpany ' s designated managers.

The Company will provide management services to BOfursuant to the terms of a Management Sen
Agreement. However, the term of the ManagemenviGes Agreement between the Company and BDF
limited to three years and may be terminated eanie@ccordance with the terms of the agreememhordg othe
things, BDFD may terminate the Management Servikgreement prior to the end of its thrgear term based ¢
the failure of BDFD to achieve certain franchiséesagoals. If BDFD terminates the Management $es
Agreement prior to the end of its thrgear term, or if the Management Services Agreerigenot renewed by tt
parties at the end of three years, the Companynwilhave a right to manage BDFD or receive anyageament fe:
in connection therewith.

If the Company fails to comply with the developmesthedule under its license agreement with BDFDwitl lose
its exclusive development rights in Colorado ans @dditional development rights in Oklahoma and Kaas. The
License Agreement requires that BD of Colo develbfeast two restaurants per year in Colorado evéreyear
period, after which BD of Colo may elect to devetajdlitional Bad Daddys Burger Bar restaurants in Coloradc
numbers determined by it. In the event that then@any fails to comply with such development schedtiien (i)
the Company ’ s right to develop any additional Bedidy 's Burger Bar restaurants in Colorado under therise
Agreement will thereafter terminate automaticalhyd&ii) BDFD may establish, operate or grant toeotthird
parties the right to establish or operate Bad DaddBurger Bar restaurants in Colorado (subjed@®oof Colo s
territory rights with respect to any existing restnt). Accordingly, if BD of Colo fails to meesidevelopmer
schedule, it will lose its exclusive right to dawelBad Daddy ’ s Burger Bar restaurants in Colorado

In addition, pursuant to the operating agreemefFD, BD of Colo has a right to develop Bad DaddyBurgel
Bar restaurants in Oklahoma and Kansas (to thenettat such territory is not then subject to depelent right:
by or part of the protected territory right of atinjrd party franchisee) subject to approval of BDFB Board of
Managers, conditioned on certain performance requents with respect to its Colorado restaurant$ pamsuant t
a minimum development schedule to be agreed upttmBBDFD for Kansas and Oklahoma. If BD of Coldg$ab
meet such performance results with respect toadter@do restaurants or fails to meet its develogreehedule fo
Oklahoma or Kansas, it will not have any right ®velop additional Bad Daddys Burger Bar restaurants
Oklahoma and Kansas.

If the Company’ s license agreement with BDFD is terminated, ther@many will lose all rights to use the Be
Daddy’ s Burger Bar name and intellectual propertyThe Company has entered into a license agreemén
BDFD for an initial term of 10 years, which is teafter renewable by the Company for two additidi@year
terms. The license agreement may be terminateBDRHD in the event of any uncured default by the @any
thereunder. In the event of termination, the lg@agreement provides that BDFD will have an optiiopurchas
the Company ' s Bad Daddy s Burger Bar restaurants for a price mutually adyrbg the parties or the
independently appraised value. Alternatively, DD does not exercise its purchase option, the Gompnus
modify the restaurants to eliminate the use ofBhd Daddy s Burger Bar name and intellectual property. I
of such events were to occur, our results of oeratwould be adversely affected.
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BDI has a dra¢-along right regarding the Companys interest in BDFD in the event that BDI proposes sell its
interests in BDFD after the fifth anniversary of #thn Company ' s investment in BDFDThe operating agreeme
contains dragdlong rights allowing BDI to require the Companyptarticipate in a proposed sale of BDFD or al
its outstanding ownership interests if approvedby and its designated managers at any time afpeil A5, 201€
(the fifth anniversary of the Company investment in BDFD), subject to certain condiiohus, after five year
BDI could force the Company to sell its membershtprest in BDFD in a transaction which is not ayyed by the
Company or its designated managers of BDFD andhwiigy not be in the Company best interest. That is, wi
regard to such a forced sale what may be deem&Dbbyor its own particular reasons and circumstanicebe ai
advantageous time for it to sell its interest inDmay be a disadvantageous time for the Compasgltaindel
its particular circumstances.

Conflicts of interest may arise as a result of ti®mpany ’s status as a substantial owner of BDFD and itstat
as a licensee of BDFD.The Company is both a 48% owner of BDFD and anBee of BDFD. In its capacity a:
substantial owner and manager of BDFD, the Computiybe obligated to require BDFD franchisees tangdy
with all of the terms of their franchise agreemenihis in turn may make it unfeasible as a pratticatter for BC
of Colo to obtain consents from BDFD for variatiasfssuch terms that the Company believes are apptegfor
the particular circumstances of the BD of Coloaestnts. For example, the Company may wish tdbeta add :
non-standard menu item to its Bad DaddyBurger Bar restaurants which will be uniquely ydapin a particula
geographic location which under such circumstami@ED would normally allow but which it would not gh to
allow for other licensees. In that event, BDFD mayetheless not permit such a variation by the Gomjpecaus
of a possible claim that it is preferentially tiegta BDFD insider.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Securities

Our principal stockholders have significant votingower and may take actions that may not be in thest
interests of our other stockholdersSmall Island Investments Limited, Rest Redux, Lar@ Hoak Public Equitie
LP together beneficially own approximately 23% afr coutstanding common stock. This concentratdl
ownership and voting power may have the effectatdiying or preventing a change in control and maghtersely
affect the market price of our common stock, amadfore may not be in the best interests of owratockholders.

Future changes in financial accounting standards m@&ause adverse unexpected operating results amecabur
reported results of operationsChanges in accounting standards can have a sigmifeffect on our reported rest
and may affect our reporting of transactions comeplebefore the change is effective. See Note bur
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn. New pronouncements and varying interpaatiof
pronouncements have occurred and may occur inutiieef Changes to existing rules or differing tiptetations
with respect to our current practices may advera#gct our reported financial results.

Our NASDAQ Listing Is Important.Our Common Stock is currently listed for trading tie NASDAQ Capita
Market. The NASDAQ maintenance rules require, agnatiner things, that our common stock price remabve
$1.00 per share and that we have minimum stocktold=juity of $2.5 million.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate gernance and public disclosure may result in addital
expenses. Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, chaggdiaws, regulations and standards relatini
corporate governance and public disclosure, inolypdhe SarbaneSxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations ¢
The NASDAQ Market rules, has required an increamadunt of management attention and expense. Waim
committed to maintaining high standards of corpogdvernance and public disclosure. As a reswdtjntend tc
invest all reasonably necessary resources to cowifityevolving standards, and this investment lessilted in an
will continue to result in increased general andhisistrative expenses and a diversion of manageniaet anc
attention from revenue-generating activities to pbamce activities.

Risks related to internal controls Public companies in the United States are requioeceview their interne
controls as set forth in the Sarbari@dey Act of 2002. It should be noted that anyteys of controls, howeve
well designed and operated, can provide only resien and not absolute, assurance that the obgscti the
system are met. In addition, the design of anytrobsystem is based in part upon certain assumgtiout th
likelihood of future events. Because of these atigér inherent limitations of control systems, éhean be n
assurance that any design will succeed in achietgnstated goals under all potential future caodg, regardles
of how remote. If the internal controls put ing#aby us are not adequate or in conformity withrédwgiirements ¢
the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, and the rules and regulationsnprigated by the Securities and Excha
Commission, we may be forced to restate our fireratatements and take other actions which wikk tsignificant
financial and managerial resources, as well asibgst to fines and other government enforcemetitras
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Because we currently qualify as*” smaller reporting company, ” our norfinancial and financial information
are less than is required by non-smaller reportingmpanies.

Currently we qualify as a “ smaller reporting compa” The “ smaller reporting companycategory include
companies that (1) have a common equity publict fiddess than $75 million or (2) are unable tocakdte theil
public float and have annual revenue of $50 miliorless, upon entering the system. A smallernt@mpcompany
prepares and files SEC reports and registratiderstnts using the same forms as other SEC repantimgpanies
though the information required to be disclosed whffer and be less comprehensive. Regulatiof ®ntains the
SEC requirements for financial statements, whileguRation S-K contains the ndimancial disclosur
requirements.

To locate the scaled disclosure requirements, emadiporting companies will refer to the speciatagaaph:
labeled “ smaller reporting companies ” in RegalatSK. As an example only, smaller reporting comparaies
not required to make risk factor disclosure in Ité4 of Form 10-K. Other disclosure required by +sonaller
reporting companies can be omitted in Form 10-Kman 10-Q by smaller reporting companies.

Risks Relating to Prior Securities Issuances

Issuances of our securities are subject to fedesiad state securities laws, and certeholders of common stoc
issued by us may be entitled to rescission in cartioe with certain sales of shares using a prospexcthat did
not meet the requirements of Section 10(a)(3) of thecurities Act

Issuances of securities are subject to federaktatd securities laws. Between May 21, 2014 anglisu20, 2014
the Company issued 484,600 shares of common sfmk @xercise by certain security holders holding/Arrants
for an aggregate purchase price of $1,332,650. Cdrapany issued these shares on the belief thathéres wer
registered pursuant to the Company ’ s registragtatement on Form $-originally filed with and made effecti
by the SEC on August 15, 2013 (the “ Initial Regison Statement ” Jand that the issuance did not require a

or updated registration statement. The Compangrhecaware that the SEC does not view the shares|yimd)

warrants as being “ soldfér securities law purposes until the warrantsex@rcised, and therefore it is the view
the SEC that the Company should have filed a pfisttive amendment to the Initial Registrationt&taent priol
to issuing these shares. The sale of these shaaas exercise of the A Warrants was therefore natiamin
compliance with federal and state securities lageabse the prospectus did not meet the requirerobStsction 10
(a)(3) of the Securities Act. Consequently, thédéis of A Warrants who purchased such shares real &
rescind the sale, in which case we could be lifdnleescission payments to them in the amount eir taggregat
original purchase price plus applicable interéstne or more investors were to successfully seeth rescission ¢
prevail in any such suit, we could face financiahdnds that could materially and adversely affectfimancial
position. As of the date hereof, we have not regkiany claims for rescission or damages or claetating to an)
other liability stemming from our issuance of thekares.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We currently lease approximately 4,900 square ééetpace for our executive offices in Golden, Cattwr for
approximately $95,000 per year under a lease agneemvhich expires in September 30, 2019. We reg
executed a lease amendment that modifies the érpirdate to May 15, 2015 and reduces the mongmy by 50%
for December 2014 through April 2015 due to altegriailding plans by the landlord that affect dghts to certait
common area amenities. The space is leased fraBaliey Company, a significant stockholder in @@mpany
at their corporate headquarters. We plan to leaseexecutive office space prior to May 15, 2015.

As of December 11, 2014, Good Times has an owrgeistérest in twentywix Good Times units, all of which a
located in Colorado. Seven of these restauraetield in a joint venture limited partnership ofiethGood Time:
is the general partner. Good Times has a 50%eisttém six of the partnership restaurants and a in88fest in on
restaurant. There are nineteen Good Times unit@athavholly owned by Good Times.

Most of our existing Good Times restaurants areralgnation of freestanding structures containing approxima
880 to 1,000 square feet for the double drive format and approximately 2,400 square feet for pnatotype
building with a 70 seat dining room. In additiome have several restaurants that are conversioms @ither
concepts in various sizes ranging from 1,700 sqfeseto 3,500 square feet. The buildings areagtlion lots o
approximately 18,000 to 50,000 square feet. Qergstaurants serve as collateral for the undeylgizbt financing
arrangements as discussed in the Notes to Conlifianancial Statements included in this reptve intend to
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acquire new sites both through ground leases amchase agreements supported by mortgage and léd
financing arrangements and through sale-leaselzaelements.

Our three Bad Daddy & restaurants are leased spaces of approximatedp 3p 4,000 square feet in re
developments. We intend to lease additional ia-ind end-cap spaces in retail developments.

All of the restaurants are regularly maintainedy repair and maintenance staff as well as byideitontractor:
when necessary. We believe that all of our proggedre in good condition and that there will breead for periodi
capital expenditures to maintain the operational aesthetic integrity of our properties for theefmeable futur
including recurring maintenance and periodic capitaprovements. All of our properties are covengal tc
replacement cost under our property and casuakyrémce policies and in the opinion of managemee
adequately covered by insurance.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not involved in any material legal procegdinWe are subject, from time to time, to varitawgsuits in th
normal course of business. These lawsuits arexpected to have a material impact.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED ST OCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Shares of our Common Stock are listed for tradinghe NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “ GTIM
The following table presents the quarterly high &md bid prices for our Common Stock as reportedtts
NASDAQ Capital Market for each quarter within tlaest two fiscal years. The quotations reflect ihtater price:
without retail mark-ups, mark-downs or commissiand may not represent actual transactions.

2013 2014
QUARTER ENDED HIGH LOW QUARTER ENDED HIGH LOW
December 31, 201 $3.3¢  $1.2C December 31, 201 $29: $2.0¢
March 31, 201! $3.4¢  $2.2¢ March 31, 201« $3.12 $2.5C
June 30, 201 $3.6( $2.7¢ June 30, 201 $4.07 $2.7¢
September 30, 201 $3.41  $2.0C September 30, 201 $6.1z2 $2.92

As of December 11, 2014 there were approximately f8lders of record of our Common Stock. Howe
management estimates that there are not fewerltb&0 beneficial owners of our Common Stock.

Dividend Policy : We have never paid dividends on our Common Stoekdo not anticipate paying dividend:
the foreseeable future. In addition, we have oltifinancing under loan agreements that restreefpayment ¢
dividends. Our ability to pay future dividends Milecessarily depend on our earnings and finarggatition.
However, since restaurant development is capit@nsive, we currently intend to retain any earsifgy tha
purpose.

On March 28, 2014, Small Island Investments Limitedverted all 355,451 shares of the CompagySeries !
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 pareshinto 710,902 shares of the CompasyCommon Stock, p
value $0.001 per share. The effects of the coiomee to eliminate the Compang payment of dividends on 1
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and to eliteithe possible need for the Company to redeensénies (
Convertible Preferred Stock for a cash paymente Chmpany filed a Registration Statement on Forinv8th the
Securities and Exchange Commission to registeistieed Common Stock for resale as well as otherkSiavne(
by Small Island Investments, Restaurant Redux avakHPublic Equities LP.

Cash dividends of $59,000 and $120,000 were pdigdal 2014 and 2013, respectively, prior to tbewersion c
the Company ' s Series C Convertible PreferrediStescribed above.

Recent Sales of Registered SecuritiesOn August 21, 2013 we completed a public ofigiah 2,200,000 shares
common stock, together with warrants to purcha88®000 shares of our common stock ( “ A Warranfsahc
additional warrants to purchase 1,100,000 sharesiotommon stock ( “ B Warrants "With a per unit purcha
price of $2.50. One share of common stock was smdther with one A Warrant, with each A Warraning
exercisable on or before August 16, 2018 for orm@esbf common stock at an exercise price of $2efspare, ar
together with one B Warrant, with two B Warrantsnigeexercisable on or before May 16, 2014 for dnare o
common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 pereshidet proceeds from the initial stock transactioere
approximately $4,659,000. During fiscal 2014 wported the exercise of approximately 97% of the &@rant:
and approximately 50% of the A warrants. Subseneethe fiscal year end we announced that a t6ta|450,10!
A Warrants, representing 97% of the outstanding &nahts, and 100% of the 154,000 Underwriter Wastamert
exercised by the holders. Total gross proceeds &ibwarrants exercised were approximately $100@®0) and n
other warrants remain outstanding. A portion & shares issued upon exercise of the A Warrantgitaed sale
of unregistered securities as described under &Re8ales of Unregistered Securities. ”

We intend to use the remaining net proceeds fromdifiering and from the exercise of the warrants tfe
remodeling and reimaging of existing Good Timesdgus & Frozen Custard restaurants; for the devetopro
new Good Times restaurants through Drive Thrutlierdevelopment of new Bad Daddy Burger Bar restaura
through BD of Colo; and as working capital reseraesl future investment at the discretion of our réoal
Directors.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Between May 21, 2014 and August 20, 2014, then@amy issue
484,600 shares of common stock at an exercise @fi$8.75 per share issued upon exercise of A Wtravith a
aggregate value of $1,332,650. The A Warrants vesteed pursuant to a Registration Statement om Sat filed
with and declared effective by the SEC on August 2613 (the “ Original Registration Statement ” The
Company understands that the SEC does not vievstihees underlying the A Warrants as being “ sofdr”
securities law purposes until the warrants areased, and therefore it is the view of the SEC that Compan
should have filed a post-effective
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amendment to the Original Registration Statemerdr go issuing these shares. The sale of theseeshgo
exercise of the A Warrants was therefore not exefrggh registration requirements under federal atate
securities laws. Consequently, the holders of Ardfds who purchased such shares may seek toddbeirsale.

Disclosure with Respect to the Company ' s Equity @mpensation Plans: We maintain the 2008 Omnik
Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, pursuant toctviiie may grant equity awards to eligible persansl hav
outstanding stock options and restricted stocktgrasued under our 2001 Good Times Restaurantk Eiptior
Plan, 1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan and 1992 -Stautory Stock Option Plan. Pursuant to stockr
approval in February 2014 the total number of shanailable for issuance under the 2008 plan waeased t
1,000,000. For additional information, see Not&#&ckholders Equity, in the Notes to the Consolidated Finar
Statements included in this report. The followiaglé gives information about equity awards underpans as ¢
September 30, 201
Equity Compensation Plan Information:
(@ (b) (©)
Number of securities remaining

Number of securities toc Weighted-average available for future issuance

be issued upon exercis exercise price of under equity compensation

of outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan category warrants & rights warrants & rights reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plat
approved by security holde 520,750 $2.95 468,923

22



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data on the following pages derived from our historical financial statenseand i
qualified in its entirety by such financial statexteewhich are included in Item 8 hereof.

The Company analyzes its operations on a regionalsp when evaluating closed restaurant operatior
consideration as to the classification betweenicoimy operations and discontinued operations.rRoidiscal 201
the Company evaluated operations at the restalewagit In its reevaluation the Company determirteat is mo:
of the Company ’'s restaurants are within the Denver metropolitagiore and share common advertis
distribution, supervision, and to a certain ex@ven customers, the Company believes it appropigaperform it
analysis on a regional basis. During 2011 the Commdosed two restaurants, in 2012 the Companyedidg/c
restaurants, and in 2013 the Company closed oteurast. The operations related to these resttuane reflecte
as part of continuing operations as they were wititie continuing operating region.

The following presents certain historical finandi#brmation of the Company. This financial infaation include
the combined operations of the Company and itsidiabes for the fiscal years ended September 80020 201+
Certain prior year balances have been reclassifteconform to the current year s presentation. Su
reclassifications had no effect on the net incomless.

September 30
Operating Data: 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Restaurant sale $ 27,662,000 $ 22,523,000 $ 19,274,00C $ 20,183,00($ 20,390,00(
Franchise fees and royalti 375,000 369,00C 432,00C 420,000 473,00C
Total Net Revenue 28,037,00C 22,892,00C 19,706,00( 20,603,00C  20,863,00(
Restaurant Operating Co:
Food and packaging cos 9,273,00C 7,655,00C 6,592,00C 7,241,00C 7,181,00C
Payroll and other employee benefit cc 9,309,00C 7,809,00( 6,691,00C 7,043,00C 7,359,00(
Occupancy and other operating cc 4,892,00C 4,345,00C 3,939,00C 4,172,00C 4,331,00C
New store pr-opening cost 669,00C 99,000 - - -
Depreciation and amortizatic 682,000 719,00C 795,000 888,000 943,000
Total restaurant operating co 24,825,00C 20,627,00C 18,017,00( 19,344,00C 19,814,00(
Selling, General & Administrative cos 3,351,00C 2,608,00( 2,154,00C 2,038,00C 2,638,00(
Franchise cost 96,000 67,000 60,000 70,000 124,00C
Loss (Gain) on restaurant ass (16,000 (18,000 (51,000 (184,000 199,000
Loss from Operation ($219,000 ($392,000 ($474,000 ($665,000 ($1,912,00C
Other Income and (expenst
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate s\ - - 20,000 27.000 3,000
Other income (expens 5.000 (6.000 (15.000 22.000 -
Affiliate investment income (los: (146,000 (102,000 - - -
Interest income (expense), | (10,000 (44,000 (199,000 (279,000 (598,000
Total other income (expens (151,000 (152,000 (194,000 (230,000 (595,000
Net Loss from continuing operatio ($370,000 ($544,000 ($668,000 ($895,000 ($2,507,00C
Loss from discontinued operatio - - - - (590.000
Net Loss ($370,000 ($544,000 ($668,000 ($895,000 ($3.097.00C
Income attributable to ni-controlling
interest (320,000 (143.000 (109,000 (118.000 165.000
Net Loss attributable to Good Tim
Restaurants Inc ($690.000 ($687.000 ($777.000 ($1.013.00C ($2.932.00C
Preferred stock dividenc 59,000 120,00C - - -
Net Loss attributable to common shareholc  ($749,000  ($807.000  ($777.000  ($1.013,00C ($2,932,00C
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Shi ($.12 ($.27 ($.29 ($.42 ($2.26
Balance Sheet Data
Working Capital (Deficit] $ 7,841,00C $ 4,834,00C $ 848,000 ($488,000 ($1,869,00C
Total asset 16,881,00( 9,875,00( 7,061,00C 6,999,00C 8,318,00C
Non-controlling interest in partnershi 279,000 242,00C 203,00C 215,000 274,000
Long-term deb! 219,000 94,000 139,000 2,067,00C 3,005,00C
Stockholders' equit $ 13,321,00C $ 7,321,00C $ 3,260,00C $ 2,520,00($ 1,694,00C
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ITEM 7.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Segment Information

All of our Good Times Burgers and Frozen Custagiawrants (Good Times) compete in the quick-serdioge-
through dining industry while our Bad Daddy ’ s Ber Bar restaurants (Bad Daddy ' s) compete irfulteservice
upscale casual dining industry. We believe thaviping this additional financial information for eaof our branc
will provide a better understanding of our oveigllerating results. Refer to note gment Reporting , in the

notes to our consolidated financial statementsnfore information.

MANAGEMENT ' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

The following tables present information about mportable segments for the respective periods:

Good Times:

Restaurant sale

Franchise revenue

Restaurant operating cos
Food and packagir

Payroll and employee benel
Occupancy and otht
Depreciation & amortizatio
Preopening cos!

Total restaurant operating co
Selling, General & Administrative cos
Franchise cosi
Gain on restaurant ass:

Income (loss) from Operatiol

Bad Daddy’ s:

Restaurant sale

Restaurant operating cos
Food and packagir
Payroll and employee benet
Occupancy and otht
Depreciation & amortizatio
Preopening cos!

Total restaurant operating co
Selling, General & Administrative cos
Franchise cosi
Loss (Gain) on restaurant ass

Loss from Operation

Restaurant operating costs are expressed as a percentage of restaurant sales

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2014 2013
$ 25,859,00( 98.6% $22,523,00( 98.4%
375,000 1.4% 369,00C 1.6%
8,655,00( 33.5% 7,655,00( 34.0%
8,408,00( 32.5% 7,809,00( 34.7%
4,530,00C 17.5% 4,345,00C 19.3%
607,000 2.3% 719,00C 3.2%
6,000 0% 0 0%
$ 22,206,00( 85.8% $20,528,00( 91.1%
3,070,00C 11.7% 2,582,00( 11.3%
96,000 A% 67,000 3%
(16,000 (.1%) (18,000 (.1%)
$ 878,000 3.4% ($267,000 (1.2%)
$ 1,803,00C 1004 $ 0
618,000 34.3% 0
901,000 50.0% 0
362,000 20.1% 0
75,000 4.2% 0
663,000 36.8% 99,000
$ 2,619,00C 1453% $ 99,000
281,000 15.6% 26,000
0 0% 0
0 0% 0
($1,097,00C (60.8%) ($125,000
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Results of Operations

Overview
Good Times restaurants:

Same store sales at our Good Times restaurantsagent 12% in fiscal 2013, and increased 14.6%saalfi2014
These results reflect the continuation of the pasimomentum we have experienced since fiscal 20ké&.14.69
increase in fiscal 2014 is comprised of a 6.7%edase in transactions, a .7% increase in our breakédes as
percentage of total sales, a 2.5% weighted avdragease in pricing and a 4.7% increase in avechgek fron
menu mix changes.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2013 we implemengedew limited item breakfast menu at Good Times dgleaerate
sales of approximately 8.3% of total sales in fi&H 4, compared to 7.6% of total sales in fis@l2 Consiste
with our brand position of offering fresh, all neglj handcrafted products, we elected to come tckamawith
authentic, Hatch Valley New Mexico green chile Bog at a price point of $2 each, which we belia/both al
excellent value for our customer and is highly etiéintiated from any other offerings in the quickvaee restaurai
category. Because we do not offer a broad breakfi@nu, we are highly labor efficient for that geart resultin
in a relatively low breakeven point and higher @mental profitability.

Our outlook for fiscal 2015 for Good Times is causly optimistic based on the last three yearsositive sale
trends; however our sales trends are influencednbypy factors. We are continuing to manage our ntizg
communications to balance growth in customer tadiind the average customer expenditure. We plaopét
additional Good Times restaurants in fiscal 2018 elnsed on the purchase of land for one restaimabecembe
2014.

Bad Daddy ’ s restaurants:

We currently operate two Bad Daddy testaurants in the Denver, Colorado greater pelitan area. We expect
open our third Colorado location in January 2018 ave have several more locations in various stagf
negotiation for development in fiscal 2015 and 20%ur first location in Colorado continues to begativel
impacted by significant construction in the immeelimade area and is the lowest average weeklg sad¢aurant
the Bad Daddy & system. We anticipate that sales will contimube negatively impacted until late spring, 2!
Our second location in Colorado opened on July2284 and continues to be the highest average weselke:
restaurant in the Bad Daddy ' s system as of tie afathis filing.

Net Revenues Net revenues for fiscal 2014 increased $5,145,8Q2.6%) to $28,037,000 from $22,892,00C
fiscal 2013, of which $3,342,000 came from the Gddes concept.

Good Times 'same store restaurant sales increased 14.6% distaf2014. Restaurants are included in same
sales after they have been open a full fifteen hmnRestaurant sales increased $887,000 fronritreygar due t
two restaurants purchased from franchisees inlf@h3 and decreased $712,000 from the prior yaartd on
companyewned restaurant closed in fiscal late 2013. Ngemaes increased $6,000 in fiscal 2014 due !
increase in franchise royalties and fees.

Average Good Times restaurant sales for commgugyated restaurants (including double drive tleaiaurants at
restaurants with dining rooms but excluding duahigrrestaurants and out of market restaurantdjstml 2013 an
2014 were as follows:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
Compan-operatec $1,035,00( $903,00c

Company operated restaurants ’ sales ranged fiom af $746,000 to a high of $1,971,000.

Bad Daddy ’s restaurant sales for fiscal 2014 were $1,803v@ldiéh includes sales for two restaurants, one
opened in February 2014 and one that opened idldye2014.

For factors which may affect future results of giens, please refer to a discussion of plannedymtoand syste
changes discussed in the section entitled “ BusiBémtegy " in Item 1 on pages 4 - 5 of this répor

Restaurant Operating Costs:

Good Times restaurant operating costs as a peofergstaurant sales were 85.8% for fiscal 2014 e tc
91.1% in fiscal 2013.
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The changes in restaurant-level costs are explaisddilows (for Good Times restaurants, excludsagl Daddy ’
s):

Restaurant operating level costs for the periockdriteptember 30, 20: 91.1%
Decrease in food and packaging ct (.5%)
Decrease in Payroll and other employee benefis: (2.2%)
Decrease in occupancy and other operating (1.8%)
Decrease in depreciation and amortization ¢ (.8%)
Increase in new store preopening ct 0%
Restaurant operating level costs for the periocdr®@eptember 30, 20: 85.8%

New store preopening costs of $6,000, includedtal restaurant operating costs, are related ®xa®ood Time
restaurant that opened in November 2014.

Food and Packaging Costs For fiscal 2014, food and packaging costs incre&¥@18,000 from $7,655,0
(34% of restaurant sales) in fiscal 2013 to $9,@203,33.5% of restaurant sales).

Good Times food and packaging costs were $8,655886% of restaurant sales) up from $7,655,0000084o!
restaurant sales) in fiscal 2013. In fiscal 2014 total weighted food and packaging costs increaggutoximatel
13% compared to fiscal 2013. The total menu gricesases taken during fiscal 2014 were 4.4% a?h2n fisca
2013. We experienced unprecedented cost increadesef and bacon from January to September 2014 ,bse
and bacon prices increasing approximately 38% #9d, 2espectively. We anticipate continued costguee o
several core commodities, including beef, baconaaidy and expect our food and packaging costspes@entag
of sales to be slightly higher in fiscal 2015 tharfiscal 2014.

Bad Daddy ’ s food and packaging costs were $607(88.2% of restaurant sales).

Payroll and Other Employee Benefit Costs For fiscal 2014, payroll and other employee bermdits increast
$1,500,000 from $7,809,000 (34.7% of restaurams3an fiscal 2013 to $9,309,000 (33.7% of restaisales).

Good Timespayroll and other employee benefit costs were $B0OD (32.5% of restaurant sales) up f
$7,809,000 (34.7% of restaurant sales) in fiscal320he $599,000 increase in payroll and other eygd benef
expenses is primarily due to the increase in restdisales. Because payroll costs are samable in nature the
normally decrease as a percentage of restauras waken there is an increase in restaurant sagsolPand othe
employee benefits increased approximately $268,@00iscal 2014 due to two restaurants purchasedn
franchisees in fiscal 2013 and decreased approglyn&355,000 in fiscal 2014 due to one companyec
restaurant closed in fiscal 2013. We anticipatgrgdh and other employee benefit costs will dececas
percentage of sales in fiscal 2015 due to the dipgreeverage on increasing sales.

Bad Daddy 's payroll and other employee benefit costs werel 8@ (50% of restaurant sales) for fiscal 2
Payroll and other employee benefit costs were iabalty high due to the lower opening sales volurheuwr first
location and the inclusion of costs related toniray and regional management. We anticipate thestetltosts as
percentage of restaurant sales will decline as $atgease and additional locations are openeiddalf2015.

Occupancy and Other Operating Costs For fiscal 2014, occupancy and other operatingsdosteased $547,0
from $4,345,000 (19.3% of restaurant sales) irefi2013 to $4,892,000 (17.7% of restaurant sal€bg $406,00
increase in occupancy and other costs is primatilybutable to:

Good Times occupancy and other operating costs $&&80,000 (17.5% of restaurant sales) up fror34500(
(19.3% of restaurant sales) in fiscal 20T%he $185,000 increase in occupancy and other desgsimarily
attributable to:

A decrease of $194,000 in occupancy and otheruesthoperating costs due to the restaurant cliosfiscal 2013
offset by the following increases:

o Increase of $192,000 in occupancy and other remthuvperating costs due to the two restau
purchased from franchisees in fiscal 2013.

« Increases in various other restaurant operatingscof $122,000 at existing restaurants comp
primarily of repairs and maintenance, property saxaility costs and bank fees.

o Increase in rent expense of $82,000 due to twolsatmback transactions completed in fiscal 2013.

o Adecrease of $17,000 to our liability for the atimn of deferred rent in fiscal 2014.

Occupancy costs may increase as a percent ofaalesw compangwned restaurants are developed due to h
rent associated with sale-leaseback operatingdeasevell as increased property taxes on thosgidois.
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Bad Daddy 's occupancy and other operating costs were $3632W2% of restaurant sales) which are relat
our first two restaurants that opened in fiscal201

New Store Preopening Costs In fiscal 2014 we incurred $669,000 of preopeningts compared to $99,00C
fiscal 2013. With the exception of $6,000 of castdiscal 2014 related to a new Good Times locatalhof the
fiscal 2013 and 2014 preopening costs are relatéoetinitial Bad Daddy $ restaurants being developed by B
Colo, the first of which opened in February 2014 #ime second of which opened in late July 2014t<fus the
initial store opening in February 2014 were higtiem normal due to payroll, travel and lodging sdsturred t
train the initial management team in North Caroli@staurants.

Depreciation and Amortization Costs: For fiscal 2014, depreciation and amortization satcreased $37,C
from $719,000 in fiscal 2013 to $682,000.

Good Timesdepreciation costs decreased $112,000 from $719n0fi€cal 2013 to $607,000, primarily due to
restaurant closed in fiscal 2013 as well as dugetdining depreciation expense in our aging comgamged an
joint-venture restaurants.

Bad Daddy ' s depreciation costs were $75,000sicefi2014.

General and Administrative Costs: For fiscal 2014, general and administrative costseased $660,000 frc
$1,703,000 (7.4% of total revenues) in fiscal 2@13$2,363,000 (8.4% of total revenues).

The $660,000 increase in general and administratipenses in fiscal 2014 is primarily attributatole

« Increase in payroll and employee benefit costs566$000 due to 1) increases to certain managemes
salaries and bonuses, 2) additional payroll coslgted to BD of Colo personnel, 3) a reallocatid
personnel from advertising costs to general andirgEidirative costs and 4) an increase in healthrarsze
costs.

« Increase in investor relations costs of $99,000.

« Netincreases in various other expenses of $56,000.

Advertising Costs: For fiscal 2014, advertising costs increased $&Bfem $905,000 (4% of restaurant sale:
fiscal 2013 to $988,000 (3.6% of restaurant sales).

Good Times advertising costs increased $42,000 $8@%,000 in fiscal 2013 to $947,000 and consistagrily of
contributions made to the advertising materialsifand regional advertising cooperative based oereeptage (
restaurant sales.

We anticipate that fiscal 2015 advertising expewde remain consistent with fiscal 2014 as a petage o
restaurant sales and will consist primarily of eat#levision advertising, social media and on-aitd point-of-
purchase merchandising totaling approximately 4¥estfaurant sales.

Bad Daddy 's advertising costs were $41,000 in fiscal 2014 emmkisted primarily of menu development
printing costs as well as direct mail costs reldtethe opening of our first restaurant in Februzog4.

Franchise Costs: For fiscal 2014 franchise costs increased $29,000 f$67,000 (.3% of Good Times tc
revenues) in fiscal 2013 to $96,000 (.4% of Gooahés total revenues). All costs are related to tbedGTime:
franchised restaurants.

Gain on Restaurant Asset SalesFor fiscal 2014 the gain on restaurant asset sl@le®ased to $16,000 comp:
to $18,000 in fiscal 2013. The gain on restausasets sales in fiscal 2014 is comprised of a $P6deferred ga
on a previous sale leaback transaction offset by a $10,000 loss to vaftebandoned point of sale equipmen
the Good Times locations.

Loss from Operations: The loss from operations was $219,000 in fisca¥2€dmpared to a loss from operati
of $392,000 in fiscal 2013.

Good Times income from operations was $878,00%aaf 2014 compared to a loss from operations 670 ir
fiscal 2013. The decrease in loss from operatiensGood Times for the fiscal year is due primatiymatter
discussed in the "Restaurant Operating Costs", é@¢mand Administrative Costs", “ Franchise Costntl “Gair
on Restaurant Asset Sales " sections above.

Bad Daddy ' s loss from operations was $1,097,00¢cal 2014 compared to a $125,000 loss in fi204l3.

Net Loss: The net loss was $370,000 for fiscal 2014 comptyeb44,000 in fiscal 2013. The change from fi
2013 to fiscal 2014 was primarily attributable he matters discussed in the "Net Revenues", "Resta@peratini
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Costs", "General and Administrative Costs" and fiErase Costs" sections above, as well as 1) a aeer@ ne
interest expense of $49,000 compared to the saimeymar period; and 2) an increase in our affiliatvestmer
loss of $44,000 in fiscal 2014 compared to fis@l2

Net interest expense decreased in fiscal 2014 cmdpa the same prior year period due to the pagfofiie note
payable to PFGI Il in fiscal 2013.

The net loss from affiliate investment activitiesnsists of the Companys share of net earnings or loss o
affiliates as they occur. The loss from investmactivities is related to our 48% ownership in BDRMBich is ¢
result of initial costs of developing the Bad Daddyfranchise program.

Income Attributable to Non-controlling Interests : For fiscal 2014 the income attributable to rammtrolling
interests was $320,000 compared to $143,000 imlfi2813. The nomontrolling interest represents the limi
partner ' s share of income in the Good Timesleweloped restaurants. The increase is attributalitee increase
sales and profitability of the co-developed resiats.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Shareholders: For fiscal 2014 the net loss attributable to com
shareholders includes dividends of $59,000 compiarelividends of $120,000 in fiscal 2013 which weskated t
the Series C Convertible Preferred Stock transaatimmpleted with SIl on September 28, 2012. ThaeSet
Convertible Preferred Stock was converted to comstock in March 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and Working Capital:

As of September 30, 2014, we had a working capitakss of $7,841,000. Because restaurant salesléeted it
cash and accounts payable for food and paper piodue paid two to four weeks later, restaurantpaomies ofte
operate with working capital deficits. We anticipahat working capital deficits may be incurredhe future an
possibly increase if and when new Good Times reatas are opened. We believe that we will havéicsent
capital to meet our working capital, long term debligations and recurring capital expenditure seadiscal 201
and beyond.

Financing:

Public Offering : On August 21, 2013 we completed a public offerifig2@00,000 shares of common st
together with warrants to purchase 2,200,000 sheresr common stock ( “ A Warrants ‘apd additional warrar
to purchase 1,100,000 shares of our common stb&k Warrants ” )with a per unit purchase price of $2.50.
share of common stock was sold together with orwakrant, with each A Warrant being exercisable nbejore
August 16, 2018 for one share of common stock adxarcise price of $2.75 per share, and togethtir ovie E
Warrant, with two B Warrants being exercisable omefore May 16, 2014 for one share of common stichr
exercise price of $2.50 per share. Additionallyigsgeied 330,000 A warrants to purchase 330,000 sloi@mmo
stock and 330,000 B warrants to purchase 165,00fbwimon stock to the underwriters in connectiorhwite
public offering with the same terms as the A amngdrants sold in the offering. Also in connectioithathe public
offering we issued 154,000 underwriter warrantptwchase 154,000 of common stock at an exercige @
$3.125 to the underwriters. The underwriter wasantre exercisable beginning May 16, 2014 and expi
August 16, 2016. As of September 30, 2014 we recegross proceeds of $6,823,000 and incurred $28%)!
expenses related to the exercise of warrants.

In October 2014 the Company mailed a notice ofmegton to all holders of the Compang ‘A Warrants. Each
Warrant was exercisable for one share of commarktb$2.75 per share until 5:00 p.m. Colorado Témé-riday
November 14, 2014. Holders of the A Warrants ardonger entitled to exercise their warrants fomowon stoc
and have no rights, except to receive the redemmptiice of $.01 per A Warrant, upon surrender efrtieries
Warrants. No other warrants remain outstanding.

S| Investment Transaction : On March 28, 2014, Small Island Investments Lémhiconverted all 355,451 share
the Company ’s Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, par val0®1$per share, into 710,902 shares o
Company 's Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share. Theetefof the conversion were to eliminate
Company ’'s payment of dividends on the Series C Converfbbeferred Stock and to eliminate the possible
for the Company to redeem the Series C Converildéerred Stock for a cash payment.

United Capital Loan: As reported on form &, on July 30, 2014 Drive Thru entered into a Depetent Line Loa
and Security Agreement with United Capital Businkeseding ( “ Lender ” )pursuant to which Lender agreec
loan Drive Thru up to $2,100,00 (the “ Loan &nd entered into a Collateral Assignment of Fraseligreement
Management Agreement and Partnership Interests kétider. As of September 30, 2014, Drive Thru
borrowed approximately $196,000 under the Loan Agrent. In addition, on July 30, 2014, the Compamigre:
into a
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Guaranty Agreement (the “ Guaranty Agreementwith Lender, pursuant to which the Company guaesthtii¢
repayment of the Loan. The Loan Agreement, Colidtdssignment, Notes (as defined below) and Guwg
Agreement are referred to herein as the “ Loan Dmus. ”

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, Borrower omsgy up to $750,000 of the Loan to purchase a PbiBale
System and up to $1,350,000 of the Loan for thesldgwment of three new Good Times restaurants. dd@r ma)
request disbursements under the Loan Agreemerdefeelopment costs of Good Times restaurants oreford
July 1, 2015. In connection with each disbursememier the Loan Agreement, Borrower shall exect
Promissory Note (the “ Notes "in) the full amount of each disbursement requeste Notes incur interest at a 1
of 6.69% per annum, are repayable in monthly immtaits of principal and interest over 84 monthgj eantait
other customary terms and conditions. The Notessabject to certain prepayment fees ranging betviée ani
3% of the unpaid balance at such time if Borrovegralys a Note in certain circumstances prior tahihey sevent
monthly installment under such Note.

The Loan Agreement and Notes contain customaryesepttations, warranties and affirmative and neg
covenants, including without limitation, covenatdsmaintain certain insurance coverage and to i@aira certai
debt service coverage ratio, leverage ratio, amckgatio.

After the occurrence and during the continuatiommevent of default, interest on the Notes willrae at a rate
11.69% per annum and Lender may declare the unpaidipal balance of the Notes, together with aedriou
unpaid interest, immediately due and payable. Aenewf default under the Loan Documents includes,i$ no
limited to, any of the following: failure to pay ipcipal or interest when due, breach of any repregion o
warranty in the Loan Documents, commencement cfotliion or liquidation proceedings by the Compan
Drive Thru, insolvency or bankruptcy of the CompamyDrive Thru, or failure of the Company or Dri¥éru tc
comply with any material term of the Loan Documents

The Loan Agreement and Notes are secured by suiaditaall of Drive Thru 's assets, including, but not limitec
its interest in Fast Restaurants Bevelopment Limited Partnership and all distribn§cand proceeds relating
such partnership interest.

Drive Thru has provided customary representatiors warranties and made customary affirmative arghiie
covenants to Lender pursuant to the terms of thar&ily Agreement, including without limitation, avenant t
not, without Lender s prior written consent, (a) enter into or be ayp#y a merger, consolidation, reorganizal
or exchange of stock or assets, (b) transfer agrasssets which could result in a material advetsmnge to tr
business, (c) permit the sale or encumbrance ofBiveower, (d) incur additional indebtedness iness 0
$100,000, except as previously disclosed to Leodemsecured trade accounts incurred in the orgicauarse ¢
business, or (e) materially modify or amend, onmgebrive Thru to modify or amend, any term or citiwch of any
franchise, lease, management, employment, develupriimited partnership forbearance or use or kieg
agreement to which Drive Thru or the Company isudyp

Cash Flows:

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8,d30 for fiscal 2014 compared to net cash provibg
operating activities of $703,000 in fiscal 2013h€Tincrease in net cash provided by operating itiesvfor fisca
2014 was the result of a net loss of $370,000 amcash reconciling items totaling $1,808,000 (corge
principally of 1) depreciation and amortization$#82,000; 2) $162,000 of stock option compensagiqrense; :
an affiliate investment loss of $146,000; 4) a $808 increase in accounts payable and other actialglities; 5,
a $16,000 gain on asset sales; and 6) net decrieaggsrating assets and liabilities totaling $00)0

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 204as $3,849,000 compared to net cash providedgsting
activities of $453,000 in fiscal 2013. The fis@4l14 activity reflects payments for the purchaseroperty an
equipment of $3,397,000, a $375,000 investmeriterBDFD affiliate and $77,000 of net loans to flzieees.

Net cash provided by financing activities in fis@fll4 was $6,162,000 compared to $4,371,000 ialf3@13. Th
fiscal 2014 activity includes principal paymentsrmtes payable and long term debt of $46,000, retegds fror
warrant and option exercises of $6,581,000, $59j800ividends paid on the preferred stock, $31,00@ost:
related to the stock sale in 2013 and distributionson-controlling interests in partnerships o8%200.

Contingencies and Off-Balance Sheet ArrangementsiVe remain contingently liable on various land les
underlying restaurants that were previously soléraochisees. We have never experienced any lostsed ti
these contingent lease liabilities; however, ifanthisee defaults on the payments under the leasewould b
liable for the lease payments as the assignortwtessor of the lease. Currently we have not bedifietbnor art
we aware
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of any leases in default under which we are coetitly liable. However there can be no assuranaetkiere wil
not be in the future, which could have a materiesise effect on our future operating results.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates: We follow accounting standards set by the Finan&dounting
Standards Board, commonly referred to as the “ FASBhe FASB sets generally accepted accounting piis
(GAAP) that we follow to ensure we consistently agpour financial condition, results of operatioasd cas
flows. Over the years, the FASB and other desigh@&AAP-setting bodies, have issued standards in the fé
FASB Statements, Interpretations, FASB Staff Pms#j EITF consensuses, AICPA Statements of Positita
which in 2009 were codified into the FASB AccougtiStandards Codification, ometimes referred to as
Cadification or ASC.

Notes ReceivableWe evaluate the collectability of our note recelealfrom franchisees annually. The aggre
notes receivable on the consolidated balance sh&stptember 30, 2014 were $92,000.

Non-controlling Interests: Non-controlling interests, previously called minoritptérests, are presented &
separate item in the equity section of the conatid balance sheet. Consolidated net income omtt#isutable t
non-controlling interests are presented on the fadb®tonsolidated statement of operations. Additipnehange
in a parent s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do nstiltén deconsolidation are equity transactions, ta
deconsolidation of a subsidiary is recorded asim@aoss based on the fair value on the decodatidin date.

Income Taxes:We account for income taxes under the liability moett whereby deferred tax asset and liat
account balances are determined based on diffesdveteveen the financial reporting and tax basesseéts ar
liabilities and are measured using the enacteddtes and laws that will be in effect when the etiéhces a
expected to reverse. The Company provides a vatuatiowance, if necessary, to reduce deferredsarts to the
estimated realizable value. The deferred tax asmetsreviewed periodically for recoverability, amdluatior
allowances are adjusted as necessary. We beliesvmore likely than not that the recorded deféétax assets w
be realized.

The Company is subject to taxation in various fliogsons. The Company continues to remain subje
examination by U.S. federal authorities for therge2011 through 2014. The Company believes thamdsme ta
filing positions and deductions will be sustainedamdit and does not anticipate any adjustmentsatiiaesult in ¢
material adverse effect on the Company's finarmigdition, results of operations, or cash flowserBfore, n
reserves for uncertain income tax positions havenbrecorded. The Company's practice is to recognieees
and/or penalties related to income tax mattersdore tax expense. The Company has accrued $0tévest an
penalties as of September 30, 2014.

Variable Interest Entities: Once an entity is determined to be a Variable &seEntity (VIE), the party with ti
controlling financial interest, the primary benéiy, is required to consolidate it. We have thiramchisees wil
notes payable to the Company and after analysisave determined that, while the franchisees are’\dEwve ar
not the primary beneficiary of the entities, anerdiore they are not required to be consolidated.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Fair value is established under a framework forsugag fair value und
GAAP and enhances disclosure about fair value nmeasnts.

New Accounting Pronouncements There are no new accounting pronouncements ffestt the Company.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK.
Not applicable

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Company has included the financial statemeamissapplementary financiaiformation required by this ite
immediately following Part IV of this report andrkby incorporates by reference the relevant pastiointhos
statements and information into this Item 8.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

During the two most recent fiscal years, Good Tirhas not had any changes in or disagreements g
independent accountants on matters of accountifigancial disclosure.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and ProceduresBased on an evaluation of
Company ’ s disclosure controls and proceduregi¢fised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158(e) under the Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), as of the etldeo€ompany 5 fiscal year ended September 30, 2014
Company ’'s Chief Executive Officer and Controller (its piijpal executive officer and principal financial aféir
respectively) have concluded that the Companyisaakure controls and procedures were effective.

Management ' s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: We are responsible for establishing
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@porting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 1%{f) under th
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)maintain a system of internal controls that isigleed ti
provide reasonable assurance in a edftstive manner as to the fair and reliable prafian and presentation of 1
consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatement
Therefore, even those systems determined to betigffecan provide only reasonable assurance wihes ti
financial statement preparation and presentation.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial reporting asS#ptember 3
2014. In making this evaluation, our managementlube criteria set forth by the Committee of Spoimg
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ( “ COSQ in Internal Controlntegrated Framework. Tt
evaluation included a review of the documentatiboomtrols, evaluation of the design effectivenessontrols an
a conclusion on this evaluation. We have conclutlat as of September 30, 2014, the Companinternal contrc
over financial reporting was effective based ors¢heriteria.

This Annual Report does not include an attestateport of the Company $ registered public accounting fi
regarding internal control over financial reportinglanagement s report was not subject to attestation by
Company ’s registered public accounting firm pursuant teswf the SEC that permit the Company to provideg
management ' s report in this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting: There have been no significant changes in the Coynpa
s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the Companys’fiscal quarter ended Septembet
2014 that have materially affected, or are readgnidtely to materially affect, the Companys’ internal contrc
over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Nothing to report
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PART llI

We will file a definitive Proxy Statement for ou®2 5Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the SEC, purdite
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after te @& our fiscal year. Accordingly, those sectioh®ur definitive
Proxy Statement that specifically address the iteet$orth herein are incorporated by reference.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The information required by Item 10 is hereby ipmyated by reference from our definitive Proxy &ta¢n
relating to our 201 RAnnual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed withketBecurities and Exchange Commis
within 120 days following the end of our fiscal yeavered by this Form 10-K .

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby impmyated by reference from our definitive Proxy &taén
relating to our 201 RAnnual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed withketBecurities and Exchange Commis
within 120 days following the end of our fiscal yeavered by this Form 10-K .

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholde
Matters

The information required by Item 12 is hereby impmyated by reference from our definitive Prp)xStatemer
relating to our 201%Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed withketBecurities and Exchange Commis
within 120 days following the end of our fiscal yeavered by this Form 10-K .

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby ipmyated by reference from our definitive Proxy &taén
relating to our 201 RAnnual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed withketBecurities and Exchange Commis
within 120 days following the end of our fiscal yeavered by this Form 10-K .

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby iqpmyated by reference from our definitive Proxy &taén
relating to our 201 RAnnual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed withketBecurities and Exchange Commis
within 120 days following the end of our fiscal yeavered by this Form 10-K .
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following exhibits are furnished as part obtteport:

Exhibit
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Description

Articles of Incorporation of Good Times Restauralms. (previously filed on November 30, 198¢
Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant ’ s Registration 8taént on Form S-18 (File No. 33-25818) and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Good Ten&estaurants Inc. dated January 23,
(previously filed on January 18, 1990 as Exhibit & the registrant ' s Current Report on Forr 8-
(File No. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Good TsneRestaurants Inc. dated June
1994 (previously filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the régist ' s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Stater
on Form &1 filed June 7, 2013 (File No. 3-188183) and incorporated herein by referel
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Good TenRestaurants Inc. dated September 23,
(previously filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the registrarst Annual Report on Form 1RSB for the fiscal ye:
ended September 30, 1996 (File No.-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Certificate of Designations, Preferences, and RigiitSeries B Convertible Preference Stock of (
Times Restaurants Inc. (previously filed as Exhibib the Amendment No. 6 to Schedule 13D file
The Erie County Investment Co., The Bailey Compdy,P and Paul T. Bailey (File No. 0082729
on February 14, 2005 and incorporated herein tareete’

Certificate of Change of Good Times Restagrémt. (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the r&gant ’
s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 12, 2(Rile No. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Certificate of Designations, Preferences, and RigiitSeries C Convertible Preferred Stock of C
Times Restaurants Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit to the registrant * s Current Report on Forik 8
filed September 20, 2012 (File No. (-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Restated Bylaws of Good Times Restaurants Incdddterember 7, 1997 (previously filed as Ext
3.6 to the registrant ' s Annual Report on FormKER for the fiscal year ended September 30,
(File No. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Good Times Restdaidmc. dated August 14, 2007 (previot
filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant's CurrenpB® on Form & filed December 31, 2007 (File
00C-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Good Times Restésidnc. dated August 30, 2013 (previot
filed on August 30, 2013 as Exhibit 3.1 to the stigint * s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 600
18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Good Times Restésitac. dated May 2, 2014 (previously filec
Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant ' s Current Repantkorm 8-K filed May 7, 2014 (File No. 0QB590
and incorporated herein by referen

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Good Times Restésilac. dated December 18, 2014 (previa
filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant ' s Curr&weport on Form & filed December 22, 2014 (File N
00C-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (previously filedExhibit 4.1 to the registra’ s Amendmer
No. 1 to Registration Statement on For-1 filed June 7, 2013 (File No. 3388183) and incorporat
herein by reference

Good Times Restaurants Inc. 2008 Omnibus Equitgritice Compensation Plan (previously filec
Exhibit 10.1 to the registrant * s Current Repant Form 8-K filed January 30, 2008 (File No. 000-
18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Employment Agreement dated as of October 1, 200¥d®n Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Bo
Hoback (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to theisti@nt ' s Current Report on Formkfiled Januar
30, 2008 (File No. 0(-18590) and incorporated herein by referei
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First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit éxgemt and Waiver of Defaults dated Decer
27, 2011 among Good Times Restaurants Inc., GaoestiDrive Thru, Inc. and Wells Fargo Be
N.A. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the retg@nt’ s Current Report on Form B-filed Decembe
28, 2011 (File No. 0(-18590) and incorporated herein by referei

Second Amended and Restated Term Note dated Dec@np2011 by Good Times Restaurants
and Good Times Drive Thru, Inc. to Wells Fargo BaNkA. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to 1
registrant * s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Betber 28, 2011 (File No. 0A®B590) an
incorporated herein by referenc

Financial Advisory Services Agreement dated ApriR612 between Good Times Restaurants Inc
Heathcote Capital LLC (previously filed as Exhib@.1 to the registrant * s Current Report on Form 8
K filed April 11, 2012 (File No. 00a-8590) and incorporated herein by reference) andrporate
herein by reference

Amendment to the Good Times Restaurants Inc. 2008ikus Equity Incentive Compensation F
dated September 30, 2012 (previously filed as Hxhi 10 to the registrants Registration Stateme
on Form 1 filed April 26, 2013 (File No. 3:-188183) and incorporated herein by referel
Supplemental Agreement dated September 28, 201&ertGood Times Restaurants Inc. and £
Island Investments Limited (previously filed as ibih10.1 to the registrants Current Report on Fol



10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24

10.25
10.26
211
311
31.2
32.1
101

8-K filed October 1, 2012 (File No. 0-18590) and incorporated herein by referet

Amendment to Supplemental Agreement dated Octobe2d12 between Good Times Restaurants
and Small Island Investments Limited (previouslgdias Exhibit 10.1 to the registrans’Currer
Report on Form-K filed October 16, 2012 (File No. 0-18590) and incorporated herein by referer
Letter Agreement dated December 5, 2012 betweerd Goues Restaurants Inc. and GT Burgel
Colorado, Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.18the registrant ’ s Registration Statement on F&¢in
filed April 26, 2013 (File No. 33-188183) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Financial Advisory Services Agreemgaited March 25, 2013 between Good Ti
Restaurants Inc. and Heathcote Capital LLC (preshotiled as Exhibit 10.14 to the registrant’
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 2613 (File No. 333t88183) and incorporated her
by reference

Subscription Agreement dated April 9, 2013 betw&ad Times Restaurants Inc. and Bad D& s
Franchise Development, LLC (previously filed as iBih10.1 to the registrants Current Report (
Form &K filed April 15, 2013 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referet

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Badly)' s Franchise Development, LLC de
April 9, 2013 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 the registrant * s Current Report on ForniK 8ied
April 15, 2013 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Management Services Agreement dated April 9, 2@Et&éden Good Times Restaurants Inc. and
Daddy ' s Franchise Development, LLC (previousledias Exhibit 10.3 to the registrans '‘Currer
Report on Form-K filed April 15, 2013 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referel
License Agreement dated April 9, 2013 betwBed Daddy 's Franchise Development, LLC and
of Colorado LLC (previously filed as Exhibit 104 the registrant ' s Current Report on Forr &led
April 15, 2013 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Term Sheet for Joint Venture Agreement dated Apr2013 between Good Times Restaurants Inc
Bad Daddy ’ s International, LLC (previously filed Exhibit 10.5 to the registrans’Current Repc
on Form K filed April 15, 2013 (File No. 0C-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Consent and Waiver of Small Island Investments tdchidated June 3, 2013 (previously filec
Exhibit 10.20 to Amendment No. 2 to Registratioat&ment on Form $-filed June 26, 2013 (File N
33:-188183) and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment to Financial Advisory Services Agreendaied September 27, 2013 between Good 1
Restaurants Inc. and Heathcote Capital LLC (preshodiled as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrants’
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 1, 2018e(fNo. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Amendment to Amended and Restated Operating Agmneeofiddad Daddy s Franchise Developme
LLC, dated October 31, 2013 (previously filed asibit 10.20 to the registrants Annual Report ¢
Form 1(-K filed December 27, 2013 (File No. (-18590) and incorporated herein by referet
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Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 20¥3riud between Good Times Restaurants Inc
Boyd E. Hoback (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1th® registrant * s Current Report on ForrK &ied
January 10, 2014 (File No. C-18590) and incorporated herein by referet

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 2, 20hén@ Hoak Public Equities, L.P., Rest Re
LLC, and Small Island Investments Limited (previgued as Exhibit 10.1 to the registrans ‘Curren
Report on Form-K filed May 7, 2014 (File No. 0(-18590) and incorporated herein by referet
Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 2, 20idorag Good Times Restaurants Inc., Hoak P
Equities, L.P., and Rest Redux LLC (previouslydikes Exhibit 10.2 to the registrang Current Repa
on Form K filed May 7, 2014 (File No. 0(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel
Agreement between Good Times Restaurants Inc. amiderR Stetson, effective May 2, 2(
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the registrarg Current Report on Form I8-filed May 7, 201:
(File No. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Development Line Loan and Security Agreement (ngsliy filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the registré’ s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 5, 2014léANo. 00018590) and incorporated herein
reference

Collateral Assignment of Franchise Agreements, Man#ent Agreement, and Partnership Inte
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the registrast Current Report on Formfiled August 5, 201
(File No. 00(-18590) and incorporated herein by referel

Promissory Note (previously filed as Exhiliit3 to the registrant * s Current Report on F8ri filed
August 5, 2014 (File No. 0-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Guaranty Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit4lth the registrar’ s Current Report on Forn-K
filed August 5, 2014 (File No. 0-18590) and incorporated herein by referer

Subsidiaries of the Company (previously filed akiBit 21.1 to the registra’ s Registration Stateme
on Form 1 filed April 26, 2013 (File No. 3:-188183) and incorporated herein by referel
*Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuatat Rule 13-14(a)/15+-14(a)

*Certification of Controller pursuant to Rule -14(a)/15«14(a)

*Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Coatler pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1¢

The following financial information from the Compa’ s Annual Report on Form -K for the yea
ended September 30, 2014, filed with the SEC oreBéer 29, 2014 formatted in Extensible Busi
Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated t&tzents of Operations for the years er
September 30, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the ConsolidB&ldnce Sheets at September 30, 2014 and
(iii) the Consolidated Statement of StockholdeEgjuity at September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, tfs
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded September 30, 2014 and 2013, an
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme



*Filed herewith
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Good Times Restaurants Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Good Times Restaurants Inc. and satsgla

of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the relatesbtidated statements of operations, stockholdeuity, ani

cash flows for the years then ended. These comdetidinancial statements are the responsibilithefCompany ’
s management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on these consolidated financial statemeatet on ot

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighat
(United States). Those standards require that we ahd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabot
whether the consolidated financial statements mae 6f material misstatement. The Company is nwgtired tc
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audisahiernal control over financial reporting. Owdés include:
consideration of internal control over financialpogting as a basis for designing audit proceduheg &
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverasthe
Company 's internal control over financial reporting. Acciorgly, we express no such opinion. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the cons@iifihancis
statements, assessing the accounting principled aiseé significant estimates made by managemeniyedisas
evaluating the overall consolidated financial stegat presentation. We believe that our audits pieei reasonak
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeneferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, tr
financial position of Good Times Restaurants Imud subsidiaries as of September 30, 2014 and 2018 th
results of their operations and their cash flowstlie years then ended, in conformity with U.S.egally accepte
accounting principles.

/9 Hein & Associates LLP

Denver, Colorado
December 29, 2014

F-2



Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30
2014 2013
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 9,894,00C $ 6,143,00C
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accowht0 150,00C 193.,00C
Prepaid expenses and otl 55,000 106,00C
Inventories 282,00C 184,00C
Notes receivabl 10,000 15,000
Total current asse 10,391,00( 6,641,00C
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT1
Land and building 4,736,00( 4,628,00(C
Leasehold improvemen 4,710,00C 3,247,00(
Fixtures and equipme 8.796,00C 7.420,00C
18,242,00( 15,295,00(
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (12,488,00C (12,444,00C
5,754,00C 2,851,00(C
OTHER ASSETS
Notes receivable, net of current port 82,000 0
Goodwill 96,000 96,000
Investment in affiliate 502,000 273,00C
Deposits and other assi 56,000 14,000
736,000 383,00C
TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,881,00¢ $ 9,875,00C

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current maturities of lor-term debt and capital lease obligatic  $ 69,000 $ 44,000

Accounts payabl 1,085,00C 701,000
Deferred incomt 88,000 79,000
Other accrued liabilitie 1,308.00C 983,000
Total current liabilities 2,550,00C 1,807,00C
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Debt and capital lease obligatic 219,000 94,000
Deferred and other liabilitie 791,000 653,000
Total lon¢-term liabilities 1,010,00C 747,000

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES(Note 4)
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Good Times Restaurants Inc stockholc equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par valt
5,000,000 shares authorized, 0 and 355,451 sisatess
and outstanding as of September 30, 2014 and 2€4j3ctively 0 4.000
Common stock, $.001 par value; 50,000,000 st
authorized, 8,256,591 and 4,926,214 shares issauedustanding

as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respect 8.000 5.000
Capital contributed in excess of par va 33,047,00( 26,334,00(
Accumulated defici (20,013,00C (19,264,00C

Total Good Times Restaurants Inc stockholders'te: 13,042,00( 7,079,00C
Non-controlling interest in partnershi 279,000 242,000
Total stockholder’ equity 13,321,00¢ 7,321,00C
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 16,881,00( $ 9.875,00C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended

September 30

2014 2013
NET REVENUES:
Restaurant sale $ 27.662.00( $ 22,523.00(
Area development and franchise fi 6.000 13.000
Franchise royaltie 369,000 356.00C
Total net revenue 28,037,00( 22,892,00(
RESTAURANT OPERATING COST<
Food and packaging cos 9,273,00C 7,655,00C
Payroll and other employee benefit cc 9.309.00C 7.809.00C
Restaurant occupancy co 3,606,00C 3.333.00C
Other restaurant operating co 1.286.00C 1.012,00C
Preopening cos 669,000 99.000
Depreciation and amortizatic 682,000 719.00C
Total restaurant operating co 24,825,00( 20,627,00(
General and administrative co 2,363,00C 1,703,00C
Advertising cost: 988.00C 905.000
Franchise cost 96,000 67,000
Gain on restaurant asset s (16,000 (18.000
LOSS FROM OPERATION! (219,000 (392,000
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES
Interest incom 14,000 3.000
Interest expens (9.000 (47,000
Other expens (10.000 (6.000
Affiliate investment los: (146,000 (102,000
Total other expenses, r (151.000 (152.000
NET LOSS ($370.000 ($544.000
Income attributable to n-controlling interest: (320,000 (143,000
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO GOOD TIMES RESTAURANTS IN( ($690.000 ($687.000
Preferred stock dividenc (59,000 (120,000
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER: ($749.000 ($807.000
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
Net loss attributable to Good Times Restaurants ($.12° ($.27
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDIN(
Basic and Dilutet 6,151,60% 2,967.31C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders * Equity
For the period from October 1, 2012 through Septemér 30, 2014

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Capital Non-
Contributed in  Controlling
Issued Par Issued Par Excess of Par  Interestin  Accumulated
Shares Value Shares (1) Value (1) Value Partnerships Deficit Total

BALANCES, October 1, 201 355451 $ 1,000 2,726,21- $3,000 $ 21,510,00C $ 203.00( $ (18.457,00C$ 3.260.00C
Par value adjustme 3.000 (4,000 (1,000
Issuance of common shares

warrants in public offerin 2.200.00! 2.00C 4,657,00( 4.,659,00(
Stock option compensation cc 171,00C 171.00C
Nonr-controlling interest in Partnershi 39.00( 39.000
Net Loss attributable to Good Tim

Restaurants Inc and comprehensive

loss (687,000 (687,000
Preferred dividend (120.000 (120.000
BALANCES, September 30, 20: 355,451 $ 4,000 4.926.21. $5.00C $ 26,334,000 $ 242,000 $ (19.264,00C$ 7.321,00C
Stock issuance expen (31,000 (31,000
Preferred stock conversi (355,451 (4,000 710.90: 1.00(¢ (3.000
Warrant exercis 2.609,14 2,00( 6.820.00C 6.822,00(
Warrant exercis-costs (258.000 (258,000
Stock option exercis 10,32¢ 20,000 20,000
Stock compensation cc 162,00C 162.00C
Non-controlling interest in Partnershi 37,00( 37.000
Net Loss attributable to Good Tim

Restaurants Inc and comprehensive

loss (690,000 (690,000
Preferred dividend (59.000 (59.000
BALANCES, September 30, 20: 0$ 0 8.256.59. $8.00( $ 33.047.00( $ 279.00( $ (20.013.00C$ 13.321.00(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For The Years Ended

September 30,
2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss $ (370,000 $ (544,000
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 682,00C 719,000
Amortization of debt issuance co 0 6.000
Accretion of deferred rei 33.000 40,000
Affiliate investment los: 146,00C 102,00C
Gain on disposal of property, restaurants and eogih (16.000 (18.000
Stock compensation cc 162,00C 171.00C
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
(Increase) decrease
Other receivable 44,00( (48,000
Inventories (98.000 (25.000
Prepaid expenses and otl 50,00( (53.000
Deposits and other ass: (43,000) 1,000
(Decrease) increase |
Accounts payabl 384.00C 208,000
Accrued and other liabilitie 464,00C 144,00C
Net cash provided by operating activit 1.438.00(C 703.00C
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for the purchase of property and equip (3,397.00C (2,506,000
Proceeds from sale leaseback transac 0 3.329.00C
Investment in affiliate (375,000 (375,000
Loans made to franchisees and to ot (93.000) 0
Payments received on loans to franchisees andhéos 16.000 5,000
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (3,849,000 453,000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on notes payable, capital le@seklongterm det (46.000 (1.593.00C
Proceeds (costs) from stock se (31.000) 6.158.00C
Proceeds from warrant exercis 6.561.,00C 0
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 20,000 0
Preferred dividend pai (59,000 (90,000
Distributions to no-controlling interest partne (283.000 (104,000
Net cash provided by financing activiti 6.162,00C 4,371,00C
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,751,00C 5,527,00C
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of ye:i 6.143.00( 616.000

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of ye

»

9.894,00 $ 6,143,00C
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIOI

Cash paid for intere: $ 9,000 $ 54,000
Purchase of equipment with debt and capital le $ 196,00C $ 0
Preferred dividends declar: $ 0o 3 30.000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Good Times Restaurants Inc. and Subsidiarie
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountifalicies:

Organization- Good Times Restaurants Inc. (Good Times or the @oiy)pis a Nevada corporation. The Comy
operates through its wholly owned subsidiaries Goimdes Drive Thru Inc. (Drive Thru) and BD of Coéamlo LLC
(Bad Daddy '’ s).

Drive Thru commenced operations in 1986 and, aSepitember 30, 2014, operates twenty-five commamyed an
joint venture driv-thru fast food hamburger restaurants. The Compasiyestaurants are located in Coloradc
addition, Drive Thru has eleven franchises, ninerating in Colorado and two in Wyoming, and is dffg franchise
for development of additional Drive Thru restausant

Bad Daddy ' s commenced operations in 2013 andf September 30, 2014, operates two company-owrkeddrvice
upscale casual dining restaurants. The Compamgstaurants are located in Colorado.

In April 2013 we entered into a series of agreemevith Bad Daddy 5 International, LLC, a North Carolina limit
liability company ( “ BDI " ), and Bad Daddy s Franchise Development, LLC, a North Carolina tidiliability
company ( “ BDFD "), to acquire the exclusive deyenent rights for Bad Daddy s Burger Bar restaurants
Colorado, additional restaurant development rightsOklahoma and Kansas, and a 48% voting ownelisigpest il
the franchisor entity, BDFD.

In April 2013, we executed a Subscription Agreenfenthe purchase of 4,800 Class A Units of BDF&presenting
48% voting membership interest in BDFD, for ther@ggte subscription price of $750,000. The supsori price wa
payable in two equal installments, the first $308,thstallment was paid on the date of executiothefSubscriptic
Agreement, and the remaining $375,000 installmeas$ waid in December 2013. The Company accountshfg
investment using the equity method.

We follow accounting standards set by the Finand@aounting Standards Board, commonly referredsttha “FASB
" . The FASB sets generally accepted accounting plexifSAAP) that we follow to ensure we consistengigort ou
financial condition, results of operations and cicivs.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Good Times, its subsidia
and one limited partnership, in which the Compamrgreises control as general partner. The Companysoa
approximate 51% interest in the limited partnershipgthe sole general partner and receives a mare&geee prior t
any distributions to the limited partner. BecatimeCompany owns an approximate 51% interest ip&nmership ar
exercises complete management control over allsibes for the partnership, except for certain veghts, the
financial statements of the partnership are codatdd into the Companys' financial statements. The equity inte
of the unrelated limited partner is shown on theoatpanying consolidated balance sheet in the stdd&ts ’equity
section as a non-controlling interest and is adpistach period to reflect the limited partnershare of the net inco
or loss as well as any cash distributions to thitdid partner for the period. The limited partner share of the n
income or loss in the partnership is shown as eunirolling interest income or expense in the aquamying
consolidated statement of operations. All inter-pany accounts and transactions are eliminated.

Basis of Presentation The Company analyzes its operations on a regioagisbwhen evaluating closed restat
operations for consideration as to the classificatietween continuing operations and discontinygetasions. A
most of the Company § restaurants are within the Denver metropolitagiore and share common advertis
distribution, supervision, and to a certain ex@ngn customers, the Company believessiappropriate to perform
analysis on a regional basis.

Accounting Estimates- The preparation of consolidated financial statesdnt conformity with U.S. Genera
Accepted Accounting Principles requires managentemnmake estimates and assumptions that affect rieuiat:
reported in these consolidated financial statemamndisthe accompanying notes. Actual results cdiffdr from thos:
estimates.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid debt instants purchased with an ini
maturity of three months or less to be cash egeintal The Company maintains cash and cash equisalefinancie
institutions with balances that at times may bewess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpor#tioRDIC " )
insured limits of up to $250,000. The Company ha$ experienced any losses related to such accam
management believes that the Company is not exptwseohy significant risks on these accounts. @ertd the
Company ' s accounts exceeded the FDIC insuredslias of September 30, 2014.

Accounts Receivable- Accounts receivable include uncollateralized reagelgs from our franchisees and
advertising fund, due in the normal course of bessn generally requiring payment within thirty dafghe invoic
date. On a




periodic basis the Company monitors all accountsd&dinquency and provides for estimated lossesnabllectible
accounts. Currently and historically there havenbee allowances for unrecoverable accounts reckivab

Inventories— Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketa determined by the first-in first method, ar
consist of restaurant food items and related pangagupplies.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost andegmeciated using the straighte methoi
over the estimated useful lives of the relatedtasgenerally three to eight years. Property andpagent under capit
leases are stated at the present value of minireaselpayments and are amortized using the stighmethod ove
the shorter of the lease term or the estimatedilbeés of the assets. Leasehold improvementsuarertized using t
straight-line method over the shorter of the tefrthe lease or the estimated useful life of thetass

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expenseasead, and expenditures for major improvemenrgscapitalizec
When assets are retired, or otherwise disposedhef,property accounts are relieved of costs arwliraclate
depreciation with any resulting gain or loss credlior charged to income.

Impairment of Lonelived Assets— We review our londived assets including land, property and equipnfer
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnsgimdicate that the carrying amount of an assst not b
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be hettlwesed is measured by a comparison of the cagithlibsts of tr
assets to the future undiscounted net cash flowsat®d to be generated by the assets and the edpeagh flows a
based on recent historical cash flows at the restalevel.

An analysis was performed for impairment at Sepem@®, 2014 and given the results of our analysiset were n
restaurants which are impaired.

Goodwill - The Company is required to test goodwill for impaént on an annual basis or whenever indicatio
impairment arise including, but not limited to,igrsficant decline in cash flows from store opevat. Such tests cot
result in impairment charges. As of September 8242the Company had $96,000 of goodwill relatethiopurchas
of a franchise operation on December 31, 2012. élfmeas no impairment required to the acquired golbdwsi o
September 30, 2014 or 2013.

Sales of Restaurants and Restaurant Equity IntereSales of restaurants or noontrolling equity interests
restaurants developed by the Company are recondgel either the full accrual method or the instalftnmethod ¢
accounting. Under the full accrual method, a gaimot recognized until the collectability of thales price i
reasonably assured and the earnings processuslljrcomplete without further contingencies. Wleenale does n
meet the requirements for income recognition, tated gain is deferred until those requiremergsnaet. Under tf
installment method, the gain is incrementally retipgd as principal payments on the related notesivable ar
collected. If the initial payment is less thanafied percentages, use of the installment meteddliowed.

The Company accounts for the sale of restauranéstre risks and other incidents of ownership ten transferre
to the buyer. Specifically, a) no continuing ink@mnent by the Company exists in restaurants tleasaid, b) sale
contracts and related income recognition are npedéent on the future successful operations obtie: restaurant
and c) the Company is not involved as a guarantahe purchasers ’ debts.

Deferred Liabilities— Rent expense is reflected on a stralgig-basis over the term of the lease for all le
containing stepups in base rent. An obligation representing fifpeyments (which totaled $356,000 as of Septe
30, 2014) is reflected in the accompanying conatdid balance sheet as a deferred liability.

Lease incentives are recorded as a deferred tialhihen received and subsequently credited to egpense on
straight line basis over the life of the lease. Daéance of the lease incentive obligation at Seper 30, 2014 wi
$152,000 and is reflected in the accompanying diafated balance sheet as a deferred liability.

Also included in the $791,000 deferred and othabilities balance is a $232,000 deferred gain @nghle of th
building and improvements of one Compawned restaurant in a sale leaseback transactibe. blilding an
improvements were subsequently leased back fronthing party purchaser. The gain will be recognizeduture
periods in proportion to the rents paid on the tweear lease.

Revenue Recognition Revenue from company restaurant sales is recogmied the food and beverage product:
sold and are presented net of sales taxes.

Opening Costs Restaurant opening costs are expensed as incurred

Advertising— The Company incurs advertising expenses in cororegtith the marketing of its restaurant operati
Advertising costs are expensed when the relatedraising begins.
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Franchise and Area Development Fedadividual franchise fee revenue is deferred wheseived and is recogniz
as income when the Company has substantially peefdrall of its obligations under the franchise agrent and tt
franchisee has commenced operations. The Compangdmmitments and obligations pursuant to the frize
agreements consist of a) development assistanclding site selection, building specifications aeduipmer
purchasing and b) operating assistance; includaigihg of personnel and preparation and distrdsutf manuals ar
operating materials. All of these obligations affectively complete upon the opening of the restauat which tim
the franchise fee and the portion of any develogniea allocable to that restaurant is recogniz&tiere are n
additional material commitments or obligations.

The Company has not recognized any franchise fesshave not been collected. The Company seggsitel
franchise fees from other franchise revenue instiadement of operations. Revenues and costs delateompany-
owned restaurants are segregated from revenuescastd related to franchised restaurants in theerstt o
operations.

Continuing royalties from franchisees, which apeecentage of the gross sales of franchised opegtare recogniz
as income when earned. Franchise development sgpeawhich consist primarily of legal costs anda@snt openir
expenses associated with developing and openingtiise restaurants, are expensed against theddiatechise fe
income.

Income Taxes- We account for income taxes under the liability et whereby deferred tax asset and liat
account balances are determined based on diffesdemveen the financial reporting and tax baseasséts ar
liabilities and are measured using the enactedatiss and laws that will be in effect when theatiéhces are expec
to reverse. The Company provides a valuation allmeaif necessary, to reduce deferred tax asseletoestimate
realizable value. The deferred tax assets are wedeperiodically for recoverability, and valuatiaiowances ai
adjusted as necessary. We believe it is moreylitkeln not that the recorded deferred tax assditbaviealized.

The Company is subject to taxation in various fligons. The Company continues to remain sub@ex@aminatio
by U.S. federal authorities for the years 2011ugto2014. The Company believes that its incomdiliag positions
and deductions will be sustained on audit and doe¢snticipate any adjustments that will resulaimaterial adver:
effect on the Company's financial condition, resaf operations, or cash flows. Therefore, no rkesefor uncertal
income tax positions have been recorded. The Coyfgpg@nactice is to recognize interest and/or pesltelated t
income tax matters in income tax expense. No atdaorainterest and penalties was considered necgsss 0
September 30, 2014.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Sh— Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividirgincome (loss) availat
to common stockholders by the weighted average Bambcommon shares outstanding for the periodut&d EP!
reflects the potential dilution that could occusécurities or other contracts to issue commorksi@re exercised
converted into common stock. Options for 396,910 84,854 shares of common stock, and warrantg, 262,501
and 3,795,000 shares of common stock, were natded in computing diluted EPS for 2014 and 2018peetively
because their effects were anti-dilutive.

Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Cr&itik — Credit risk represents the accounting loss thatldvie
recognized at the reporting date if counterpafftdéled completely to perform as contracted. Cotreions of cred
risk (whether on or off balance sheet) that arismmf financial instruments exist for groups of custrss o
counterparties when they have similar economic adtaristics that would cause their ability to meehtractue
obligations to be similarly affected by changes@nomic or other conditions. Financial instrursemith off-balance-
sheet risk to the Company include lease liabilitibereby the Company is contingently liableaaguarantor of certe
leases that were assigned to third parties in aiifmmewith various sales of restaurants to franebés(see Note 4).

Financial instruments potentially subjecting them@any to concentrations of credit risk consist gpally of
receivables. At September 30, 2014 notes receiviabhled $92,000 and is due from three entitiédditionally, the
Company has other current receivables totaling ITBD) which includes $43,000 of franchise receigap$2,000 dt
from an affiliate and $84,000 for a receivable frime advertising cooperative fund, which are ak dlu the norm:
course of business. The Company believes it wilecofully on all notes and receivables.

The Company purchases 100% of its restaurant foddpaper from one vendor. The Company believedfaisuat
number of other suppliers exist from which food graper could be purchased to prevent any teng, advers
consequences.

The Company operates in one industry segmentursits. A geographic concentration exists becthes€ompany ’
s customers are generally located in the Stateotafr@do.

StockBased Compensation Stockbased compensation is measured at the grant deded wn the calculated 1
value of the award, and is recognized as an exparesethe requisite service period (generally tasting period of tr
grant). See Note 7 for additional information.
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Variable Interest Entitiess Once an entity is determined to be a variable ésteentity (VIE), the party with tl
controlling financial interest, the primary benéiy, is required to consolidate it. The Compaag three franchise
with notes payable to the Company. These franehisee VIE s, however, the owners of the franchise operatioe
the primary beneficiaries of the entities, not@@mpany. Therefore they are not required to bsaatated.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFair value, is defined under a framework for meagufair value under genera
accepted accounting principles and enhances disel®sabout fair value measurements. See Note additiona
information. Fair value is defined as the pricet thauld be received to sell an asset or paid tosfex a liability in a
orderly transaction between market participantthatmeasurement date. Valuation techniques usedetsure fa
value maximize the use of observable inputs andnnize the use of unobservable inputs.

The following three levels of inputs may be usedni@asure fair value and requires that the assdiabilities carriet
at fair value are disclosed by the input level undeich they were valued.

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for idehisgets and liabilities.

Level 2: Observable inputs other than defined in Level thsas quoted prices for similar assets or liab8i
quoted prices in markets that are not active; beoinputs that are observable or can be corrobday
observable market data for substantially the &riit of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated lsgtable market data.
Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented as a sepamatein the equity section of the consolidated begasheet. Tt
amount of consolidated net income or loss attritiet#o the norcontrolling interests are clearly presented onfdoe
of the consolidated income statement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement$here are no new accounting pronouncements ffiest the Company.

2. Debt and Capital Leases
2014 2013
Note payable with United Capital Business Lendiritlh\wayments of principal
and interest (6.7%) due monthly through August 202ie loan is secured by the
fixtures and equipment of the Compe’ s Good Times Drive Thru restaura 194.,00C 0
Capital signage leases with Yesco, LLC with paymefiprincipal and intere:
(8%) due monthly 74,000 102.00C
Notes payable with Ally Financial with paymentspoincipal and interest (1.9¢
to 3.9%) due monthly. The loans are secured bycles 20.000 36.000
288,00C 138,000
Less current portio (69,000 (44,000
Long term portior $ 219,00 $ 94,000

As reported on the Company ‘current form 8K dated August 4, 2014, on JulyZIi4, Good Times Drive Thru It
(the “ Borrower "), the wholly-owned subsidiary @ood Times Restaurants Inc. ( “ Good Times éntered into
Development Line Loan and Security Agreement (th@dn Agreement " ) with United Capital Businessdimg (
Lender "), pursuant to which Lender agreed to |&amrower up to $2,100,000 (the “ Loan "ajpd entered into
Collateral Assignment of Franchise Agreements, Manzent Agreement and Partnership Interests (t@ellatera
Assignment ” )with Lender. Borrowings outstanding under the Lasgreement as of September 30, 2014 »
$194,000. In addition, on July 30, 2014, Good Breatered into a Guaranty Agreementtfé Guaranty Agreeme
") with Lender, pursuant to which Good Times guarahtee repayment of the Loan. The Loan Agreemeoiiat@ra
Assignment, Notes (as defined below) and Guaragrg@ment are referred to herein as the “ Loan Decuisn”

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, Borrower msg up to $750,000 of the Loan to purchase a RbiSal¢
System and up to $1,350,000 of the Loan for thesligwnent of three new Good Times restaurants. roB@r ma;
request disbursements under the Loan Agreemenefgzlopment costs of Good Times restaurants orfoirdy July 1
2015. In connection with each disbursement urtteeiban Agreement, Borrower shall execute a Pramjddote (th
“ Notes " )in the full amount of each disbursement requeste Notes incur interest at a rate of 6.69% per amraue
repayable in monthly installments of principal anterest over 84 months, and contain other custgprtesms an
conditions. The Notes are subject to certain pneyat fees ranging between 1% and 3% of the uripahce at su
time if Borrower repays a Note in certain circumsts prior to the thirty seventh monthly installmender such Not

The Loan Agreement and Notes contain customareseptations, warranties and affirmative and negatowenant
including without limitation, covenants to maintaiertain insurance coverage and to maintain aineté&bt service
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coverage ratio, leverage ratio, and quick ratio.S&ptember 30, 2014 the company was in compliarite all the
required covenants.

As of September 30, 2014, principal payments on bebome due as follows:
Years Ending September 30

2015 $ 69,00(
2016 61,00(
2017 37,00(
2018 28,00(
2019 30,00(
Thereaftel 63,00(
$ 288,00(

Total interest expense on notes payable and cégétsts was $9,000 and $48,000 for fiscal 2014iscal 2013,
respectively.

3. Other Accrued Liabilities
Other accrued liabilities consist of the followiagSeptember 30:
2014 2013
Wages and other employee bene $ 530,000 $ 305,00(
Taxes, other than income t 594,00( 505,00(
Other 184,00( 173,00(
Total $ 1,308,000 $ 983,00(
4. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company ’ s office space, and the land anddimgjt related to the Drive Thru and Bad Daddy restaural
facilities are classified as operating leases atpire over the next 16 years. Some leases contmalaion claus
over the lives of the leases. Most of the leasegaim one to three fivgear renewal options at the end of the ir
term. Certain leases include provisions for add#lacontingent rent payments if sales volumes akspecified level
The Company paid no material contingent rentalinduiscal 2014 and 2013.

Following is a summary of operating lease actifitythe fiscal years ended September 30, 2014 ahd:2

2014 2013
Minimum rentals $ 2,382,00 $ 2,131,00C
Less sublease rent: (436,000 (424,000
Net rent paic $ 1,946,00C $ 1,707,00C

As of September 30, 2014, future minimum rental waments required under the Company dperating leases tl
have initial or remaining non-cancellable leasengein excess of one year are as follows:

Years Ending September 30

2015 $ 2,584,00C

2016 2,500,00C

2017 2,514,00C

2018 2,507,00C

2019 2,147,00C
Thereaftel 9,036,00C
21,288,00(

Less sublease rent: (2,308.00C
$ 18,980,00(

The Company is contingently liable on the sublaasgals disclosed above. The subleased and asdiggwses expil
between 2015 and 2024. In the past the Companpéwas been required to pay any significant amoummionnectio
with its guarantees and currently we have not bexified nor are we aware of any leases in defaylhe franchisee
however there can be no assurance that there etitbe such defaults in the future which could haweaterial effes
on our future operating results.
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5. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprisetheffollowing at September 30:

2014 2013

Current Long Term Current Long Term
Deferred assets (liabilities
Tax effect of net operating loss ce-forward
(includes $15,500 of charitable ce-forward) $ 0 $ 2.83000C $ 0 $ 2.,733.00C
Partnership basis differen 0 194,000 0 168.00C
Deferred revenu 0 98,000 0 107.00C
Property and equipment basis differen 0 409,000 0 400,00C
Other accrued liability and asset differel 40,000 186.000 12.000 94,000
Net deferred tax asse 40,000 3.717.00C 12.000 3.502,00C
Less valuation allowance (40,000 (3,717,00C (12,000 (3,502,00C
Net deferred tax asse $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

*  The valuation allowance increased by $243,000 dutie year ended September 30, 2014.

The Company has net operating loss c&oryvards available for future periods, as discudseldw, of approximate
$941,000 from 2013 and 2014, and $6,108,000 frof® 20hd prior for income tax purposes which expioenf 201
through 2032. Based on the change in control, lwloiccurred in 2011, the utilization of the lossrgdorwards
incurred for periods prior to 2012 is limited tgpapximately $160,000 per year.

Total income tax expense for the years ended 26d4813 differed from the amounts computed by dpplthe U.S
Federal statutory tax rates to pre-tax income be:

2014 2013
Total expense (benefit) computed by applying th®. $tatutory rate (35% $ (247300 $ (24?300
State income tax, net of federal tax ber (21.000 (21.000
Effect of change in valuation allowan 243,000 71.000
Permanent difference 51,000 29,000
Expiration of net operating loss ce-forward 1,000 149,000
Other (32.000) 12,000
Provision for income taxe $ 0o $ 0

6 Related Parties

The Erie County Investment Company (owner of 99% lné Bailey Company) is a holder of our common lstaic
has certain contractual rights to elect memberth®fCompany s Board of Directors under the Series B Convel
Preferred Stock Agreements entered into in Febr2@®p and modified under the Series C Convertibddelred Stoc
agreement entered into in June 2012.

The Company leases office space from The Bailey 2oy under a lease agreement which expires in ®epte201¢

Rent paid to them in fiscal 2014 and 2013 for aaffspace was $67,000 and $59,000, respectively.réaanth
executed a lease amendment that modifies the égpidate to May 15, 2015 and reduces the mongtiy oy 50% fc
December 2014 through April 2015 due to alternatidimg plans by the landlord that affect our righio certai
common area amenities. The space is leased fraB&ley Company, a significant stockholder in @@mpany, ¢
their corporate headquarters. We plan to leaseaexesutive office space prior to May 15, 2015.

In April 2012 the Company entered into a financilvisory services agreement with Heathcote Caphital
(Heathcote) pursuant to which they were to provide Company with exclusive financial advisory seegi ir
connection with a possible strategic transacticaryG. Heller, a member of the Compars/Board of Directors, is tl
principal of Heathcote. Accordingly, the agreemeanstitutes a related party transaction and wagewed an
approved by the Audit Committee of the Company Board of Directors. On March 25, 2013, the Comypanc
Heathcote modified this agreement to exclude asuysactions involving the Maxim Group LLC and fordtteote t
continue to provide noexclusive financial advisory services to the Comypadn September 27, 2013, the Comy
and Heathcote further modified this agreement wvige for investor relations activities specifigatielated to th
exercise of the outstanding warrants and the tgaslislume in the Company s stock and other corporate fina
projects as determined by the CEO of the compahg. Mmodification was approved by the Audit Committéehe
Company 's Board of Directors. Total amounts paid to Heatthegere $136,500 and $27,900 in fiscal 2014 arwdl
2013, respectively.
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In April 2013 the Company entered into a managersentices agreement with BDFD pursuant to whichGbepan
will provide general management services as wellcasunting and administrative services. Incomeived from th
agreement by the Company is fully recognized imine and then proportionately offset by the 48% tggovestmer
in BDFD. Total amounts received from BDFD per than@gement services agreement were $24,000 ando$lit
fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. In additionthe management services the Company performed ssfoperk
services and total amounts received from BDFD lfiesé services were $64,000 and $18,000 in fiscld 20d fisce
2013, respectively.

7. Stockholders Equity :

Preferred Stock The Company has the authority to issue 5,000,086estof preferred stock. The Board of Direc
has the authority to issue such preferred sharssries and determine the rights and preferencésedathares as m
be determined by the Board of Directors.

On March 28, 2014, Small Island Investments Limiteshverted all 355,451 shares of the ComparsySeries
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 pareshinto 710,902 shares of the ComparsyCommon Stock, p
value $0.001 per share. The effects of the coioemsere to eliminate the Company ‘payment of dividends on 1
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and to eliteirthe possible need for the Company to redeentS#res (
Convertible Preferred Stock for a cash payment.

Common Stock

Public Offering— On August 21, 2013 we completed a public offerifi@,200,000 shares of common stock, toge
with warrants to purchase 2,200,000 shares of @munneon stock ( “ A Warrants "gnd additional warrants to purch
1,100,000 shares of our common stock ( “ B Warraptith a per unit purchase price of $2.50. One sbammmot
stock was sold together with one A Warrant, withheA Warrant being exercisable on or before Audst2018 fo
one share of common stock at an exercise price2ofS$per share, and together with one B Warrart) wio E
Warrants being exercisable on or before May 164401 one share of common stock at an exercise @fi2.50 pe
share. Additionally we issued 330,000 A warrantpucchase 330,000 shares of common stock and 3B8,0¢arrant
to purchase 165,000 of common stock to the und&msrin connection with the public offering witreteame terms
the A and B warrants sold in the offering. Alsaconnection with the public offering we issued 1949,0epresentati\
warrants to purchase 154,000 of common stock axarcise price of $3.125 to the underwriters. Té@raesentativ
warrants were exercisable beginning May 16, 20T4expire on August 16, 2016.
Per Share Total

2.50( $ 5,500,00!

0.17¢ $ 385,00(

2.32¢ $ 5,115,00!

0.207 $ 456,00(

2.11¢ $ 4,659,00

We used the net proceeds from this offering forreanaining required equity contribution to Bad Dadd Franchis
Development; for the remodeling and reimaging a$taxy Good Times Burgers & Frozen Custard restasrdor the
development of new Bad Daddys’' Burger Bar restaurants through BD of Colorado 1 B6d as working capi
reserves and future investment at the discretimuoBoard of Directors.

Public offering price

Underwriting discounts and commissic
Proceeds, before expenses, t
Expenses, to L

Net proceeds, to L

AP B PP

In October 2014 the Company mailed a notice of mgaten to all holders of the Companys’A Warrants. Each
Warrant was exercisable for one share of commorkstb $2.75 per share until 5:00 p.m. Colorado ToneFriday
November 14, 2014. Holders of the A Warrants aréonger entitled to exercise their warrants fomowon stock ar
have no rights, except to receive the redempti@emf $.01 per A Warrant, upon surrender of theMarrants. N
other warrants remain outstanding.

Common Stock Dividend RestrictiorsAs long as at least twibirds of the shares of common stock into whick
Series B Preferred Stock was converted remainshhetie former holders of such converted SerieséBelred Stocl
without the written consent or affirmative vote tbe holders of threquarters of the then outstanding votes o
shares of the Series B Preferred Stock and thesludithe common stock, the Company cannot instaay payme
of cash dividends or other distributions on anyret@af common stock.

Stock Plans- The Company has an Omnibus Equity Incentive Caoisga@on Plan (the “ 2008 Plan "gpproved b
shareholders in fiscal 2008, which is the succesgoity compensation plan to the Comparg/ 2001 Stock Optic
Plan (the “ 2001 Plan " )Pursuant to stockholder approval in September 20itFebruary 2014 the total numbe
shares available for issuance under the 2008 Pmimcreased to 1,000,000. As of September 30,,248892:
shares were
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available for future grants of nonqualified stogitions, incentive stock options, stock appreciatights, restricte
stock, restricted stock units, performance shagormance units and stock-based awards.

The 2008 Plan serves as the successor to our 280143 amended (the “ Predecessor Plaraiid,no further awar
shall be made under the Predecessor Plan fromftardilze effective date of the 2008 Plan. All ¢atsling awarc
under the Predecessor Plan immediately prior teffestive date of the 2008 Plan shall be incorfaatanto the 20C
Plan and shall accordingly be treated as awardsruhé 2008 Plan. However, each such award sbatinue to b
governed solely by the terms and conditions of itterument evidencing such grant or issuance, ardept a
otherwise expressly provided in the 2008 Plan otheyCommittee that administers the 2008 Plan,rogigion of th
2008 Plan shall affect or otherwise modify the tigbr obligations of holders of such incorporateuals.

Stockbased compensation is measured at the grant dagedbon the calculated fair value of the award, ia
recognized as an expense over the requisite sqyeiiad (generally the vesting period of the grant)

The Company recorded $162,000 and $171,000 in staak option and restricted stock compensatiorees@ durin
fiscal years 2014 and 2013, respectively that Massified as general and administrative costs

Stock Option awards

The Company measures the compensation cost aggsbuidh stock option awards by estimating the Yaiue of the
award as of the grant date using the Black-Schuiesng model. The Company believes that the vadnaechnique
and the approach utilized to develop the underlgagumptions are appropriate in calculating theviaiues of the
Company ' s stock options and stock awards gradtethg fiscal 2014 and 2013. Estimates of fair galre not
intended to predict actual future events or theealltimately realized by the employees who receiyeity awards.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20E1Cbmpany granted 89,500 incentive stock optioois favailable
shares under its 2008 Plan, as amended, with anisx@rice of $2.48 and a per-share weighted gesiair value of
$2.12.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 208 Obmpany granted a total of 47,000 rstatutory stock optiol
from available shares under its 2008 Plan, as aetknwith exercise prices ranging from $2.31 to $24Ad pershar
weighted average fair values ranging from $1.962®9. In addition the Company granted a totall#f,421 incentiv
stock options with an exercise price of $2.31 apérashare weighted average fair values of $1.96.

In addition to the exercise and grant date prideh® stock option awards, certain weighted avesgimptions th
were used to estimate the fair value of stock opgi@nts are listed in the following table:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2014
Incentive Stock Non-Statutory Stock Incentive
Options Options Stock Options
Expected term (year: 6.5 6.4t07.1 6.5
Expected volatility 110.5% 106% to 112.3% 112.11%
Risk-free interest rat 1.13% 1.28% to 1.84Y 1.94%
Expected dividend 0 0 0

We estimate expected volatility based on histonieetkly price changes of our common stock for dopeequal to th
current expected term of the options. The figle interest rate is based on the United Stadestry yields in effect
the time of grant corresponding with the expecethtof the options. The expected option term isniln@ber of yea
we estimate that options will be outstanding pt@exercise considering vesting schedules and istorital exercis
patterns.
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The following table summarizes stock option acyivadr fiscal year 2014 under all plans:

Weighted Average

Remaining
Weighted Average Contractual Life Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price (Yrs.) Intrinsic Value

Outstandin-beg of yea 324,853 $4.35
Options grante: 89.500 $2.48
Options exercise (10,326) $1.99
Forfeited 0
Expired (7.117 $10.80
Outstanding Sept 30, 20: 396,910 $3.87 7.1 $  1.281.00
Exercisable Sept 30, 20: 196.989 $5.38 55 $ 559.00(

As of September 30, 2014, the total remaining wgrized compensation cost related to mested stock options w
$226,000 and is expected to be recognized oveighteel average period of approximately 2.10 years.

Restricted Stock Grants

During the fiscal year 2014, the Company issued84Bshares of restricted stock to certain employar executi
officers from available shares under its 2008 PtEnamended. The shares were issued with a gremfalamarke
value of $3.23 which is equal to the closing p¢¢he stock on the date of the grants. The résttistock grant ves
three years following the grant date.

A summary of the status of naested restricted stock as of September 30, 20didchanges during fiscal 2014
presented below.

Weighted Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested shares at beg of y 0
Grantec 123,840 $3.23
Vested 0
Nonr-vested shares at Sept 30, 2! 123,840 $3.23

As of September 30, 2014, there was $367,000 af totrecognized compensation cost related to netedeaestricted
stock. This cost is expected to be recognized aweeighted average period of approximately 2.7%syea

Warrants- In connection with the public offering in August@we issued 2,200,000 warrants to purchase 2,2C
shares of our common stock ( “ A Warrantsdnd an additional 2,200,000 warrants to purchab@01000 shares
our common stock ( “ B Warrants " Additionally we issued 330,000 A warrants to pus#a&30,000 shares
common stock and 330,000 B warrants to purchas@@65f common stock to the underwriters in conioectith the
public offering. Each A Warrant was exercisableoorbefore August 16, 2018 for one share of comntooksat a
exercise price of $2.75 per share and two B Wasramre exercisable on or before May 16, 2014 fa simare ¢
common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 peresh#so, in connection with the public offering vesued 154,0(
representative warrants to purchase 154,000 sbasnmon stock at an exercise price of $3.12%héounderwriter:
The representative warrants were exercisable biegjivay 16, 2014 and expire on August 16, 2016.

As of September 30, 2014 we received gross prooee$s,823,000 and incurred $259,000 of expendaseckto th
exercise of warrants.

A summary of warrant activity for the fiscal yearded September 30, 2014 is presented in the failpveble:

Number Weighted Average

of Shares Exercise Price Per Share
Outstandin-beg of yea 5,214,00C $2.68
Issuec 0
Expired (69,300 $2.50
Exercisec (3,882,200 $2.62
Outstanding and exercisable at Sept 30, ¢ 1,262,50( $2.75
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Issuances of securities are subject to federaktatd securities laws. Between May 21, 2014 arglisu20, 2014, tt
Company issued 484,600 shares of common stock exentise by certain security holders holding A \&ats for a
aggregate purchase price of $1,332,650. The Coynipaned these shares on the belief that the shemesregistere
pursuant to the Company ' s registration staternarfform S, of which this prospectus forms a part, origindilled
with and made effective by the SEC on August 13,32@he “ Initial Registration Statement "gnd that the issuar
did not require a new or updated registration statd. The Company became aware that the SEC dwegenv the
shares underlying warrants as being “ soldr’securities law purposes until the warrantsexercised, and therefort
is the view of the SEC that the Company should H#ed a posteffective amendment to the Initial Registra
Statement prior to issuing these shares. Theddaleese shares upon exercise of the A Warrantsthexgfore nc
made in compliance with federal and state secarif@s because the prospectus did not meet théreetgnts c
Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act. Consedyettie holders of A Warrants who purchased suareshmay se:
to rescind the sale, in which case we could bddifdr rescission payments to them in the amounheir aggrega
original purchase price plus applicable interess. of the date hereof, we have not received ariynsl&or rescission
damages or claims relating to any other liabilignsming from our issuance of these shares.

In October 2014 the Company mailed a notice of mgaten to all holders of the Companys’A Warrants. Each
Warrant was exercisable for one share of commorkstb $2.75 per share until 5:00 p.m. Colorado ToneFriday
November 14, 2014. Holders of the A Warrants aréonger entitled to exercise their warrants fomowon stock ar
have no rights, except to receive the redempti@epf $.01 per A Warrant, upon surrender of theMvarrants. N
other warrants remain outstanding.

Non-controlling Interest Drive Thru is currently the general partner of dimeited partnership that was formed
develop Drive Thru restaurants and Drive Thru ¢bédr limited partner interest in one restaurantune 2010. Limite
partner contributions have been used to constrwtnestaurants. Drive Thru, as a general pargesrerally receive
an allocation of approximately 51% of the profiddnsses and a fee for its management services.edhity intere:
of the unrelated limited partner is shown on theoagpanying consolidated balance sheet in the stdd&rs ’equity
section as a non-controlling interest and is adpistach period to reflect the limited partnershare of the net incol
or loss as well as any cash distributions to thetéid partner for the period. The limited partner share of the n
income or loss in the partnership is shown as cunirolling interest income or expense in the aquamying
consolidated statement of operations. All inter-pany accounts and transactions are eliminated.

8. Investment in Affiliate

On April 15, 2013, the Company executed a Subseripigreement for the purchase of 4,800 Class AdJofi BDFD
representing a 48% namntrolling voting membership interest in BDFD, ftire aggregate subscription price
$750,000. The subscription price was payable magqual installments, the first $375,000 installmgas paid on tf
date of execution of the Subscription Agreemerd, the remaining $375,000 installment was paid iodbeber 2013.

The Company accounts for this investment usingetiigty method. Thus, during fiscal 2014 and 20h8, Compan
recorded its portion of the investment in BDFD @68,000. For fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 the Comgpacorded
net loss of $145,000 and $102,000, respectivelyjtéoshare of BDFD s operating results. The carrying valu
September 30, 2014 was $502,000, which is repredeagt Investment in Affiliate in the accompanyimmsolidate
balance sheets.

9. Retirement Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (tfeh ). Eligible employees may make voluntary contributita
the Plan, which may be matched by the Companyn ianaount equal to 25% of the employeecontribution up to 6'
of their compensation. The amount of employeerdmutions is limited as specified in the Plan. Tempany may, .
its discretion, make additional contributions te ®lan or change the matching percentage. The &uoyrgid not mak
any matching contributions in fiscal 2014 or fisall 3.

10. Seament Reporting:

All of our Good Times Burgers and Frozen Custastaigrants (Good Times) compete in the quick-serdibee-
through dining industry while our Bad Daddy ’ s Ber Bar restaurants (Bad Daddy ' s) compete infulieservice
upscale casual dining industry. We believe thatipiing this additional financial information for ea of our branc
will provide a better understanding of our overgkrating results. Income (loss) from operatioqsagents revenu
less restaurant operating costs and expensestlylitocable general and administrative expenses] othe
restaurant-level expenses directly associatedewitih brand including depreciation and amortizagoappening cos
and losses or gains on disposal of property andipegpnt. Unallocated corporate capital expendituanes presente
below as reconciling items to the amounts presentéite consolidated financial statements.
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The following tables present information about mportable segments for the respective periods:

Twelve Months Ended
September 30
2014 2013

Revenue:
Good Times 26,234,00( $ 22,892,00(
Bad Daddy' s 1,803,00C 0

»

$ 28,037,00( $ 22,892,00(

Income (loss) from operatiol
Good Times $ 878,000 ($267,000
Bad Daddy s (1,097,000 (125,000
($219,000 ($392,000

Capital Expenditure

Good Times $ 1,311,00C $ 2,460,00C
Bad Daddy s 2,215,00C 0
Corporate 67,000 0

$  3,593,00C $  2,460,00(

Property & Equipment, ne

Good Times $  3,499,00C $ 2,803,00C
Bad Daddy s 2,188,00C 48,000
Corporate 67,000 0

$  5,754,00C $ 2,851,00C

10. Subsequent Events:

In December 2014 the Company borrowed $401,000ruhéeDevelopment Line Loan from United Capital Bes:
Lending, as described in Note 2 above.

Subsequent to September 30, 2014 we received piocé&3,252,000 from the exercise of 1,182,600akrants.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgeeAct, the registrant caused this report to geed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

December 26, 2014

GOOD TIMES RESTAURANTS INC.

[/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hobacl

President and Chief Executive Offic

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this reposttheen signed below by the following persons oralbelf the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisdted.

/s David L. Dobbin
David L. Dobbin, Chairman
December 26, 2014

I8/ Geoffrey R. Bailey
Geoffrey R. Bailey, Directa
December 26, 201

/s Reuven Har-Even
Reuven He-Even, Directol
December 26, 201

/sl Gary J. Heller
Gary J. Heller, Directc

December 26, 2014

/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hoback, Director ar

President and CEO
(Principal Executive Officer)
December 26, 201

/s Susan M. Knutson

Susan M. Knutson, Controller

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
December 26, 2014

/g Steven M. Johnson
Steve Johnson, Direct
December 26, 201

/9 Eric W. Reinhard
Eric W. Reinhard, Directc
December 26, 201

/s Alan A. Teran
Alan A. Teran, Directo
December 26, 2014

/s Robert Setson
Robert Stetson, Directt
December 26, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Boyd E. Hoback, certify that:

1

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ks0bd Times Restaurants Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgain untrue statement of a material fact or onr
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under whiiatt
statements were made, not misleading with respeabetperiod covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this rep
fairly present in all material respects the finah@ondition, results of operations and cash flafishe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentékisgnreport;

The registrant 5 other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclos
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangeRAies 13a-15(e) and 18d(e)) and internal conti
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f)) for the registrant ai
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures;aosed such disclosure controls
procedures to be designed under our supervisia@nsuare that material information relating to
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissmade known to us by others within tF
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control ¢
financial reporting to be designed under our supEm, to provide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting érthe preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdisclosure controls and procedures and pres
in this report our conclusions about the effectegnof the disclosure controls and procedurt
of the end of the period covered by this reporedas such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regustias internal control over financial report
that occurred during the registrant ' s most redetial quarter (the registrants’ fourth fisce
quarter in the case of an annual report) that hatenally affected, or is reasonably likely
materially affect, the registrant’ s internal amhver financial reporting; and

The registrant 's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluatiot
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant ’ s board of directors (or persons penfog the equivalent functions):

(& All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal cor
over financial reporting which are reasonably k& adversely affect the registrarg ability tc
record, process, summarize and report financialinétion; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmmagement or other employees who he
significant role in the registrant ’ s internal tah over financial reporting.

Date: December 29, 2014

/s/ Boyd E. Hoback
Boyd E. Hoback

President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CONTROLLER

I, Susan M. Knutson, certify that:

1

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K5obd Times Restaurants Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgain untrue statement of a material fact or onr
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmeade, in light of the circumstances under whiiatt
statements were made, not misleading with respeabetperiod covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this rep
fairly present in all material respects the finah@ondition, results of operations and cash flafishe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentékisgnreport;

The registrant 5 other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclos
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangeRAies 13a-15(e) and 18d(e)) and internal conti
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f)) for the registrant ai
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures;aosed such disclosure controls
procedures to be designed under our supervisia@nsuare that material information relating to
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissmade known to us by others within tF
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control ¢
financial reporting to be designed under our supim, to provide reasonable assur:
regarding the reliability of financial reporting érthe prep